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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of ZENITH

EXPORTS LIMITED (CIN: L24294WB1981PLC033902) will be held onWednesday, 29th September’2021

at 11:30 a.m. (IST) through  Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact

the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the

financial year ended 31stMarch, 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Urmila Loyalka (DIN: 00009266), who retires by rotation and, being

eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Approval for Payment of Remuneration to Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka (PAN: ABAPL3996R) for

Holding  an office or place of Profit in the Company and in this regard  to consider and, if thought fit, to

pass the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1)(f) and other applicable provisions, if any, of

the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), other applicable

laws and in accordance with the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Audit

Committee and the Board of Directors, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to

the appointment of Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka (Father of Mr. Varun Loyalka, Managing Director of the

Company) holding office or place of profit as Chief Executive Officer – Silk Division of the Company w.e.f.

13th November, 2020 on the remuneration, terms and conditions as set out in the explanatory statement attached

hereto.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Nomination & Remuneration Committee/Board of Directors has the

liberty to alter and vary such remuneration in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to

effect change in designation and responsibilities of Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka holding office or place of

profit, within the maximum limit approved by the shareholders.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby

authorized  severally to execute and perform such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary and to

give such directions as may be desirable that may arise in giving effect to this resolution.”

Registered & Head Office: By Order of the Board of Directors

19, R. N. Mukherjee Road For ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

First Floor, Kolkata - 700 001 Sd/-

Dated: 13thAugust, 2021 Vikram Kumar Mishra

Company Secretary

FCS: 11269
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Notes:

1. In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be strictly followed by every individual.

Therefore, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA‘) has vide its General Circular dated 13thJanuary ,

2021 read with General Circulars dated 8thApril, 2020, 13th April, 2020 and 5th May, 2020 (collectively

referred to as ‘MCA Circulars‘) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM‘) through

Video Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’), without the physical presence

of the Members at a common venue. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide

its Circulars dated 12thMay, 2020 and 15thJanuary, 2021 (‘SEBI Circulars’) has also granted certain

relaxations. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Securities

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI

Listing Regulations‘), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through

VC/OAVM on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 11.30 a.m. (IST). The proceedings of the 39th  AGM

shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at 19, R.N.Mukherjee Road,

Kolkata – 700 001.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the

Special Business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

3. A statement giving additional details of the Director(s) seeking appointment /re-appointment at this AGM

as set out at Item No. 2 of this Notice are annexed herewith as required under Regulation 36(3) of the

SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company

Secretaries of India.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and

vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not

be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC/OAVM pursuant to the above

mentioned MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the

facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy

Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map for the AGM are not annexed to this Notice.

5. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative to attend the AGM through VC or

OAVM or to vote through remote e-voting, pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, are requested to

send a certified copy of the board resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at asit.labh1@gmail.com with a

copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in, authorising their representative by 28thSeptember, 2021, to attend and

vote on their behalf at the AGM.

6. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the

Company as on the cut-off date of Wednesday, 22ndSeptember, 2021.

7. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI Circulars,  this Notice together with annual report for

the financial year 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email

addresses are registered with the company/depositories. Copies of the Notice and annual report 2020-21

will also be uploaded on the company’s website at www.zenithexportslimited.com, websites of stock

exchanges i.e., BSE Ltd and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., at www.bseindia.com and

www.nseindia.com respectively.

8. The Members can join the AGM through VC / OAVM 15(fifteen) minutes before and after the scheduled

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
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facility of participation at the AGM through electronic mode will be made available for 1000 members on

first come first served basis. It may be noted that the large Shareholders (i.e. Shareholders holding 2% or

more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’

Relationship Committee, Auditors are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first

come first served basis.

9. Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the

quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves

as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID

and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at sec@zenithexportsltd.net from 22nd September, 2021

to 25th September, 2021 by 5.00 p.m.The Company will respond to the shareholder suitably. Those Members

who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions

during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the

availability of time for the AGM.

11. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday,

23rd September, 2021 to Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of AGM.

12. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be

transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of request for

transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical

shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to

consider converting their holding to dematerialized form. Members can contact our RTA M/s. C.B.

Management Services Pvt Ltd. for assistance in this regard.

13. In case of Joint Holders attending the AGM, only such Joint Holder whose name appears first in the order

of names will be entitled to vote.

14. All the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under

Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested

maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available for inspection by the Members in electronic

mode during the AGM. Members who wish to seek inspect, may send their request through an email at

sec@zenithexportsltd.net up to the date of AGM.

15. The Company’s Statutory Auditors M/s. V. Goyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed

as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 35th Annual General Meeting held on 15th September , 2017.

Pursuant to Notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 7th May, 2018 amending section

139 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules framed thereunder, the mandatory requirement for ratification

of appointment of Auditors by the Members at every AGM has been omitted. Accordingly, no resolution is

being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at 39th AGM.

16. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to the Financial Statements, or any other matter to be

placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before 20th September, 2021 on

sec@zenithexportsltd.net. The Company will respond to the shareholder suitably. Please note that the

shareholders’ questions will be answered only if the shareholder continues to hold the shares as of the cut-

off date i.e. Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021.
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17. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8thApril, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the

facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However,

the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/

OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting.

18. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested

to register the same with their depository participants in case the shares are held by them in electronic

form and with RTA at tanmoyb@cbmsl.com/rta@cbmsl.com in case the shares are held by them in

physical form.

19. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate immediately any change in their

address, email-id, and bank particulars to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining

their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change in

their address or bank mandates immediately to Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. C.B. Management

Services Pvt Ltd, P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata- 700 019.

20. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account

Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Accordingly, members holding shares in

electronic form are requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they maintain

their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN details to Registrars

and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. C.B. Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

21. Members holding shares in single name are advised to avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares

held by them pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members holding

shares in physical form desiring to avail this facility may send their nomination in the prescribed Form No.

SH-13 duly filled in to M/s. C.B. Management Services Pvt. Ltd.   Members holding shares in electronic

mode may contact their respective Depository Participants for availing this facility.

22. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company

of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised to not

leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the

concerned Depository Participant (‘DP’) and holdings should be verified from time to time.

23. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations

& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circular issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs dated 13th January, 2021 read with Circulars dated 8thApril, 2020, 13thApril, 2020 and

5thMay, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business

to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized

agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting

on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

24. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13thApril, 2020, the

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at zenithexportslimited.com.

The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National

Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM

Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.

www.evoting.nsdl.com
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25. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Sunday, September 26, 2021 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Tuesday,

September 28, 2021 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting

thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the

record date (cut-off date) i.e. Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021, may cast their vote electronically. The

voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the

Company as on the cut-off date, being Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned

below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9thDecember , 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update

their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders holding

securities in Demat mode with NSDL.

Login Method

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IdeAS

facility, please visit the e-Services website of

NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home

page of e-Services is launched, click on the

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is

available under “IdeAS” section. A new screen

will open. You will have to enter your User ID and

Password. After successful authentication, you will

be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access

to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will

be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options

available against company name or e-Voting

service provider – NSDL and you will be re-

directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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2. If the user is not registered for IdeAS e-Services,

option to register is available at https://

eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for

IdeAS” Portal or click at  https://

eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web

browser by typing the following URL: https://

www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of

e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/

Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will

have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit

demat account number held with NSDL),

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown

on the screen. After successful authentication, you

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein

you can see e-Voting page. Click on options available

against company name or e-Voting service

provider – NSDL and you will be redirected to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders holding

securities in Demat mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest,

they can login through their user id and password.

Option will be made available to reach e-Voting

page without any further authentication. The URL

for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://

web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System

Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will

be also able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu

will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e.

NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option

to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/

myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
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Individual Shareholders (holding

securities in Demat mode) login

through their depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your

demat account through your Depository Participant reg-

istered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  Once

login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you

click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/

CDSL Depository site after successful authentication,

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options

available against company name or e-Voting service

provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the re-

mote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting

during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Individual Shareholders holding

securities in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding

securities in demat mode with CDSL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990

and  1800 22 44 30

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-

23058738 or 022-23058542-43

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting

page by providing demat Account Number and PAN

No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page.

The system will authenticate the user by sending

OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in

the Demat Account. After successful authentication,

user will be provided links for the respective ESP

i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in

demat account with NSDL.

b) For Members who hold shares in

demat account with CDSL.

c) For Members holding shares in

Physical Form.

Your User ID is:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client

ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

IN300***12******.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is

12************** then your user ID is

12**************

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number

registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is

101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

(a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to

login and cast your vote.

(b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial pass-

c) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in

demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:/

/www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a

Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to

Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :
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word’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your

password.

(c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file.

Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for

NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares

held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your

password:

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request

at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN,

your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on

the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the

check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you

are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select EVEN - 117186 of Zenith Exports Limited to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you

need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.
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3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when

prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the

confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested

specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the

Scrutinizer by e-mail to asit.labh1@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-1020-990and 1800- 224-430  or send a

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

The instructions for Members for e-Voting on the day of the AGM are as under:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above

for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from

doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility

for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.
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26. Process for those members whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for

procuring user id and password and registration of email ids for e-voting for the resolutions set

out in this Notice :

a) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of members, scanned copy

of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR

(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to sec@zenithexportsltd.net.

b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to

sec@zenithexportsltd.net. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode,

you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-

Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat

mode.

c) Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

d) In terms of SEBI circular dated 9thDecember , 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to

update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting

facility.

27. Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

a) Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-

Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL

e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join

General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link

placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/

Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do

not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may

retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last

minute rush.

b) Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

c) Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any

disturbance during the meeting.

d) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network.

It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid

glitches.
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28. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity shares capital

of the Company as on the cutoff date (record date) i.e.Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021.

29. Any persons, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of

the notice and holding shares as of the cutoff date i.e. Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021, may obtain the

login id and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered

with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the

vote.

30. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held,

allow voting, by use of e-voting system for all those Members who are present during the AGM through

VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. The e-voting module

during the AGM shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 15 minutes after the conclusion of the Meeting.

31. Mr. Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary (Mem. No.32891, COP No.14664) has been appointed

as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting processin a fair and transparent manner.

32. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast and

make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total

votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who will

acknowledge the receipt of the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

33. The Results will be declared within 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM by the Chairman or by any person

authorized by him in this regard. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed

on the Company’s website www.zenithexportslimited.com and on the website of NSDL

www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward

the results to BSE Limited (“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) where the shares

of the Company are listed.

Registered & Head Office: By Order of the Board of Directors

19, R. N. Mukherjee Road For ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

First Floor, Kolkata - 700 001 Sd/-

Dated: 13thAugust, 2021 Vikram Kumar Mishra

Company Secretary

FCS: 11269
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets out all material

facts relating to the businesses mentioned under Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice.

Item No.3

The Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company

have recommended the appointment and remuneration of Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka (Father of Mr. Varun

Loyalka, Managing Director of the Company), at their meetings held on November 13, 2020, in terms of the

provisions of Section 177, 188 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Section 188(1)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15(3) (i) of Companies (Meetings of Board and

its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended, provides that related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit

in the Company carrying monthly remuneration exceeding Rs. 250,000/- shall be subject to approval by the

Board of Directors of the Company and the Members of the Company.

Given below is a statement of disclosures as required under the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)

Rules, 2014:

a) Name of the related party: Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka.

b) Name of the director or key managerial personnel who is related, if any: Mr. Varun Loyalka, Mrs. Urmila

Loyalka and Mr. Rajkumar Loyalka.

c)  Nature of relationship: Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka, is related to Mr. Varun Loyalka, Managing Director

as father, Mrs. Urmila Loyalka - Woman Director as spouse and Mr. Rajkumar Loyalka - Chief Executive

Officer as brother.

d) Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or arrangement:

1) Basic Salary: Rs.1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per month.

2)  Special Allowances: Rs.1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per month.

3) Residential Accommodation: Rent free furnished residential accommodation. The expenses incurred

on Gas, Electricity and Water to be borne by himself.

4) Reimbursement of Medical Expenses: Reimbursement of Medical Expenses actually incurred

on self and family subject to a ceiling of one Month salary in a year or three months’ salary over a

period of three years.

5) Leave Travel Concession:Once in a year for self and family. Family means wife and dependent

children.

6) Club Fees: The Company will bear the annual, admission & life membership fees of not more than

2 Clubs, expenses incurred at  clubs other than for the purpose of business of the Company to be

borne by himself.
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7) Personal Accident Insurance: The Company will cover your life against Personal Accident

Insurance, premium of which shall not exceed Rs.10,000/- per month.

8) Leave:Entitled to privilege and earned leave on full pay and allowances as per the rules of the

Company subject to a maximum of one month leave for eleven months of service.

9) Provident Fund: The Company will contribute to the Provident Fund as per the rules of the Company.

The contribution towards Provident Fund and encashment of leave at the end of the tenure will not be

included for computation of ceiling on remuneration as specified in Section II of Part II of Schedule

V of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent these either individually or put together are not taxable

under the Income Tax Act.

10) Gratuity: Gratuity payable will not exceed half a month salary for every completed year of service

subject to a maximum ceiling as may be laid down in the Gratuity Act from time to time.

11) Telephone: The Company will provide Telephones including Mobile Phone at the residence for

official as well as Personal use provided, however, that personal long distance calls will be billed by

the Company.

12) Car:The Company will provide Car to you for business and for personal use.

13) Reimbursement of Expenses: The Company will reimburse all travelling, entertainment and other

expenses incurred by you for the Purpose of Company’s business.

e) Any other information relevant or important for the members to take a decision on the proposed resolution:

Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka, aged 71 years, is commerce graduate having degree in Law, He has around

40 years of experience in the Textile industry in India and Overseas.  He is one of the founding Promoters

of the Company and has experience in the Export, Marketing and Administration.

The special business as set out against item No. 3 was approved by the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee, Audit Committee and the Board at their respective meetings held on 13thNovember, 2020.

Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka & his relatives are interested in this item of business to the extent of their

shareholding. Except this, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel(s) or their relatives are in

any way concerned with or interested financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends the resolution in Item No. 3 with respect to

remuneration of Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka, for holding office or place of profit for the approval by the

shareholders of the Company as Ordinary Resolution.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the 39th Annual General Meeting

as set out in item no. 2 of the Notice [Pursuantto Regulations 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard - 2 on General

Meetings]:

Name of the Director Mrs. Urmila Loyalka

DIN 00009266

Date of Birth 11/07/1958

Nationality Indian

Date of First Appointment 13/02/2015

Qualifications Higher Secondary

Expertise in specific functional  areas She has more than 15 years of experience in in export

business. She is one of the Promoters and woman

Director of the Company and having expertise in areas

relating to Export, Marketing & Administration.

Details of remuneration sought to be paid Nil

Last Remuneration Drawn Nil

Directorship in other Companies* 1.   Zenith Koplavitch Exports Limited

2.   Loyalka Leclercq Textiles Limited.

Chairmanship/Membership of the

Committees of the Board of Directors None

of  other Companies*

Shareholding in the Company 629150  equity shares as on 31st March, 2021

Inter-se relationship with other Spouse of Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka,

Directors and Key Managerial Mother of Mr. Varun Loyalka and

Personnel Sister-in-law of Mr. Rajkumar Loyalka

Number of  Board meetings Attended

during the year Four

*Directorship includes Directorship of Public Companies & Committee membership includes only Audit Committee

and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Public Limited Company (whether Listed or not).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 39th Annual Report covering the operational and financial performance

of your Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations 5070.60 8286.58

Other Income 396.32 563.47

Total Revenue 5466.92 8850.05

Less: Expenses 5582.53 9022.69

Profit before exceptional items and taxes (115.61) (172.64)

Less: Exceptional Items (44.65) -

Profit /(Loss) before Taxation (160.27) (172.64)

Less: Tax Expenses (Current & Deferred) (30.55) (29.59)

Profit/(Loss) for the year (129.72) (143.05)

Add: Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Income (Comprising Profit/(Loss) for the year and

Other Comprehensive Income) (129.72) (143.05)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 5070.60 Lakhs

as compared to the turnover of Rs. 8286.58 Lakhs recorded during the previous financial year ended March 31,

2020. Revenue from operations for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 has decreased by 39% over the

corresponding period last year. The Company has incurred loss before tax for the financial year ended March

31, 2021 of Rs. 160.27 Lakhs compared to previous financial year of Rs. 172.64 Lakhs. The net loss after

taxfor the financial year ended March 31, 2021 stood to Rs. 129.72 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 143.05 Lakhs

over the last financial year.
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COVID-19 IMPACT

In view of nationwide lockdown announced by the Government of India due to Covid-19, the Company had

been adversely impacted by way of temporary closure of its manufacturing and sales operation pan India.

Subsequently, the Company has resumed its operations, in strict compliance with the Government regulations,

as applicable. The Company has made an assessment of the recoverability and carrying values of its assets

comprising property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and other financial assets as on March 31,

2021 and on the basis of evaluation, has concluded that no material adjustments are required in the financial

results.The Company is taking all the necessary steps and precautionary measures to ensure the safety and

well-being of all its employees. India is currently experiencing a massive second wave of Covid-19 infections.

However, we expect no major changes in the economic activity as the nation is preparing to face the Pandemic

with vaccines and preparedness.

WEAVING DIVISION

During the year under review, demands of the silk and silk blends continues to be under pressure due to high

value of fabrics and less demand of expensive fabric in European and American Markets. Consequent upon

this to strengthen the demand, the company has changed its product mix and now less expensive qualities are

being offered in the market and response is good.

Also, the company after Covid-19 pandemic is looking to exploit the opportunities of businesses shifting their

purchases away from China. But at the same time, company has to compete with big mills within India. Company

is also developing new fabric using anti-microbial inherent properties and anti Covid finishes expanding its

product offerings and capturing new clients. Markups are very Low, but expecting goodresults in future.

SPINNING DIVISION

The Spinning division your Company called ‘Zenith Spinners’ located at Dholka, Ahmedabad which had suspended

its operations since December, 2015, due to steep competition and unfavorable market situation has started

business of trading of Cotton with effect from January, 2019.

DIVIDEND

In view of accumulated losses the Board of Directors did not recommend any dividend on Equity Shares during

the year.

GENERAL RESERVE

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the financial year ended March 31,

2021.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the financial year 2020-21, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2021stands at Rs. 5,39,62,500/-comprising

Nos. 53,96,250 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. During the financial year 2020-21, your Company has neither

issued any shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint Venture/ Associate Companies.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 have been disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,

2021, which forms part of this Annual Report.Your Company has not given any guarantee or provided any

security during the year under review.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, ICRA Limited (ICRA) has reaffirmed the long-term rating for the Fund-Based

Limits as [ICRA]B+ (pronounced ICRA B plus) and reaffirmed the short-term rating for the LOC as [ICRA]A4

(pronounced ICRA A four). The Outlook on the long-term rating is ‘Stable’.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION

BETWEEN END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THIS REPORT

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there have been no material changes and commitments which

could affect the financial position of your Company, between the end of financial year i.e. March 31, 2021 and

the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/ COURTS

During the year under review, there were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts and

no litigation was outstanding as on March 31, 2021, which would impact the going concern status and future

operations of your Company.

LISTING INFORMATION

The Company’s equity shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and on the National Stock Exchange of India

Limited (NSE). Listing Fees have been paid up to March 31, 2022 to both Stock Exchanges.

ACCREDITATION

The Company have been accredited ISO 9001:2015 for Quality Management Systemby JAS-ANZ.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year 2020-21 all transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties as defined

under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder were in the ‘ordinary

course of business’ and ‘at arm’s length’ basis and there has been no materially significant Related Party

Transactions having potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

Your Company also did not enter into any Related Party Transactions which require prior approval of the

Members. All Related Party Transactions of your Company had prior approval of the Audit Committee and the

Board of Directors, as required under the Companies Act and Listing Regulations. Subsequently, the Audit

Committee and the Board have reviewed the Related Party Transactions on a quarterly basis. Your Company

has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions and the said Policy has been uploaded on the website of

the Company at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

Particulars of contract or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act, in the

prescribed Form AOC-2, is annexed as Annexure I, to this Report. Shareholders may refer to notes to the

Financial Statements for details on Related Party Transactions as required under the Ind AS 24.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under section197(12) of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 are

annexed as Annexure - II  to this Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2021 is

available on the Company’s website at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, M/s. V. Goyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (ICAI Firm

Registration No.312136E),was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a consecutive period of 5

(five) years from the conclusion of the 35th Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 15th September’2017

till the conclusion of 40th Annual General meeting to be held in the year 2022.

Your Company has received a certificate from M/s. V. Goyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants confirming

their eligibility to continue as Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. They have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued

by the Peer Review Board of the ICAI as required under the provisions of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.
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The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended

March 31, 2021 forms part of the Annual Report.The Report does not contain any qualification, reservation,

adverse remark or disclaimer

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act’2013 read with Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the Board have appointed CS Asit Kumar

Labh (ACS: 32891, COP No. 14664), Practicing Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company,

to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and to submit Secretarial Audit

Report in the prescribed Form No. MR-3.

The Secretarial Audit Report as received from CS Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary, for the

financial year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed to this Reportas Annexure-IV. There is no qualification, reservation

or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Secretarial Auditor in his Report.

Cost Auditor

In view of the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the provisions of Cost Audit is not applicable on the products

of the Company for the ended March 31, 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review your Company has complied with the respective mandatory Secretarial Standards

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY

Your Company has an adequate system of internal financial controls commensurate with its size and scale of

operations, procedures and policies, ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy

and completeness of accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The Audit

Committee evaluates the internal financial control system periodically.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to energy conservation, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo,

required to be disclosed by section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the

Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 are givenbelow:-

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company is engaged in the continuous review of energy costs, reduction in energy generation cost through

improved operational and maintenance practices. Energy conservation continues to receive priority attention at

all levels. Company is continuing with energy saving measures initiated earlier like usage of more sophisticated

machinery which can do more work in lesser time and thereby reducing the requirement of equipment that

programs to maximize saving in i) Electrical Energy and  ii) Fuel oil  consumption.
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POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Weaving Weaving

i) Electricity

a) Purchased Unit(KWH in lakhs) 3.59 7.10

Total Amount (Rs.in lakhs) 49.34 76.57

Rate/Unit (in Rs.) 13.76 10.79

b) Own Generation

i) Through  Furnace Oil

   Generated Units (KWH in lakhs) 0.00 0.00

Unit/Litre of Diesel 0.00 0.00

Cost/Unit (Rs./Unit) 0.00 0.00

ii) Through  Stem Turbine  Generator 0.00 0.00

iii) Through  Diesel Generator 0.00 0.00

ii) Coal Nil Nil

iii) Furnace/Other Oil

Quantity (in lakhs Ltrs.) 0.000 0.000

Total Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 0.00 0.00

Average rate per litre (Rs.) 0.00 0.00

Briquettes & Fire Wood (in lakhs Kgs.) 2.46 3.20

Total Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 6.97 16.75

Average Rate per Kgs.(Rs.) 2.84 5.08

iv) Other Internal Generation Nil Nil

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT
OF PRODUCTION

Electricity (KWH) 10.87 11.67

Furnace Oil (Ltrs.) 0.00 0.00

Briquettes & Fire Wood (Kgs.) 5.17 5.08

Standard (KWH) 0.00 0.00
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B.   TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

There are no existing technology supply agreements. Along with that we have been continuously adding latest

machines, and balancing equipment’s as and when required.

C.   FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars Current Year Current Year

(2020-21) (2019-20)

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Total Foreign exchange earnings 4703.46 6602.84

Total foreign exchange outgo 107.01 355.10

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Your Company’s Board is duly constituted in compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of the Articles of

Association of the Company. As on March 31, 2021, the Company’s Board comprised of 6 (six) Directors.

Details of the composition of the Board are provided in the Corporate Governance Report for the financial year

2020-21.

Mrs.Urmila Loyalka (DIN:00009266), Non-Executive Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at

the ensuing AGM and being eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment in terms of Section 152(6) of the

Act, read with the Articles of the Company. Your Board recommends the reappointment of Mrs. Urmila Loyalka

as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka (DIN: 00006232) had resigned from the Board of Director and appointed as Joint

Chief Executive Officer of the Company  with effect from November13, 2020.

The Company has received Notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from the Member(s) of the

Company signifying the candidature of Mrs.Urmila Loyalka for her re-appointment at the ensuing AGM.

Necessary Resolution along with disclosure /information in respect of the director seeking appointment/re-

appointment has been annexed to the Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

As on March 31, 2021, Mr. Varun Loyalka, Managing Director, Mr. Rajkumar Loyalka, Chief Executive Officer,

Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka, Jt. Chief Executive Officer,  Mr.  Sushil Kumar Kasera, Chief Financial Officer

and Mr. Vikram Kumar Mishra, Company Secretary are the whole-time Key Managerial Personnel of the

Company in terms of Section 203 of the of the Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2020-21, 4 (four) Board Meetings were held. The said meetings were held on July 30,

2020, September 04, 2020, November 13, 2020 and February 12, 2021. Details of Board composition and Board

Meetings held during the financial year 2010-21 have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report

which forms part of this Annual Report.
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ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees, and

individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

The Board evaluated its performance after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as

the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. The

performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members

on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The

above criteria are as provided in the “Guidance Note on Board Evaluation” issued by SEBI on January 5, 2017.

In a separate meeting of independent directors held on February 12, 2021, performance of non-independent

directors and the board as a whole was evaluated without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and

members of the management pursuant to Regulation 25 (3) of the Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the

Companies Act, 2013.

The Independent Directors in the said meeting also evaluated the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of

information between the company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively

and reasonably perform their duties. Additionally, the Chairman of the Board was also evaluated on key aspects

of his role, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors in the aforesaid

meeting. The above evaluations were then discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting of the

independent directors and meeting of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, at which the performance

of the board, its committees, and individual directors was also discussed.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Directors confirming that they

meet the criteria of independence, as laid down Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of

Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Names of all

the Independent Directors of the Company are registered with the Independent Directors’ Databank being

maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. Requisite confirmations as per Rule 6 of the Companies

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, have been received from the Independent

Directors in this regard.

The Board of Directors have taken on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the Independent

Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same and is of the opinion that all the

Independent Directors of the Company have required integrity, experience and expertise.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Management of the Company keeps regularly updating the Independent Directors about the Company’s

businesses, market conditions, growth and performance, strategies, efficacies of internal financial controls,

internal and external risks along with mitigation plans, compliance and governance structure and other material

information relevant for them to have a clear understanding of their roles, rights and responsibilities for the

purpose of contributing significantly towards the growth of the Company.
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The Company organized a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors on the Board of the Company

on August 10, 2020 in compliance of Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The detail of such familiarization programmeis available on the website of

the Company at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015.  The details pertaining to composition and meetings of the committee are provided in the Corporate

Governance Report, which forms part of this report. The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by

the Audit Committee during the financial year 2020-21.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

In terms of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Company has adopted a Nomination &

Remuneration Policy for selection and appointment of Directors including determining qualifications and

independence of a Director, Key Managerial Personnel, and providing for their remuneration and that of the

senior management personnel as part of its charter and other matters provided under the Act and Listing

Regulations. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website

at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

The objectives and key features of this Policy are as under:

l Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel;

l Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and persons who may be appointed in Key

Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy;

l Formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors including

Independent Directors/ Non-Executive Directors;

l Devising a policy on Board diversity;

l Directors’ induction and continued updation as and when required of their roles, responsibilities and liabilities;

l Aligning the remuneration of Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

Personnel with the Company’s financial position, industrial trends, remuneration paid by peer companies

etc.; and

l Recommend to the Board all the remuneration in whatever form, payable to the Senior Management.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Act, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, hereby

confirm that:
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a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable

Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing

and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such

internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

In terms of section 177(9) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and also in terms of

Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015,as amended, the

Company has a Vigil Mechanism that provides a mechanism for the Director/ employees to report without fear

of victimization, any unethical behavior, suspected or actual fraud, violation of the Code of conduct and instances

of leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, which are detrimental to the Company’s interest. The

mechanism protects whistle blower from any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other

unfair employment practice. The Company affirms that no employee has been denied access to the Audit

Committee.The said Policy is placed on the website of the Company at www.zenithexportslimited.com. During

the year under review, there has been no incidence reported which requires action by the Vigil Mechanism

Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has put in place a Risk Management Policy with the objective of timely identification of risks,

assessment and evaluation of such risks in line with the overall business objectives or strategies and defines

adequate mitigation strategy. Risk is an integral part of any business and the Company is committed to manage

the risk in a proactive and efficient manner. The Risk management Policy of the Company has been published

in the Company’s website at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT’2013

The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has formulated a policy on

prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder

for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The said policy is available on
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the website of the Company at www.zenithexportslimited.com. An internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has

been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,

temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. During the year under review, there was no case of Sexual

Harassment received or disposed of by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and

SEBI Listing Regulations. A separate section on Corporate Governance along with a certificate from the

Statutory Auditors confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Part-D of

Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed hereto

and forms part of this report.

A certificate from Practicing Company Secretary confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the

Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company as

prescribed under Listing Regulations is also annexed and forms part of this report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year 2020-21, as stipulated under Regulation 34

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate

section forming a part of this Report.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation of the continued support and guidance provided by

Central and State Government and all Regulatory bodies.Your Directors offer their heartiest thanks to the

esteemed shareholders, customers, business associates, Financial Institutions and Commercial Banks for the

faith reposed by them in the Company and its management.Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation

of the dedication and commitment of Company’s officers and employees at all levels and look forward to their

continued support in future as well.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Sd/-

Varun Loyalka

Place: Kolkata Managing Director

Dated: 13thAugust’2021 DIN: 07315452
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Annexure – I

FORM NO. AOC – 2

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,

and rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s

length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis :

During the year under review, there were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by

the Company with related parties which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year

ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Name of Nature of Description Salient terms Duration March 31,

Related party transaction of relationship of the contracts 2021

or arrangements

or transactions

including the

value, if any.

SKL Exports Ltd. Purchase of Sri Surendra At Prevailing One year 249.63

fabrics, job Kumar Market Price

work & sale Loyalka upto an

of goods  is a agreegate

Director in value of

SKL Exports Ltd. Rs. 10 Crore

vide  Board

Resolution

dated 30/07/2020.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Sd/-

Varun Loyalka

Place: Kolkata Managing Director

Dated: 13thAugust’2021 DIN: 07315452
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Annexure- II

1. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act,

2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014:-

I. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the

Company for the financial year 2020-21 along with the percentage increase in remuneration of each

Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the financial year 2020-21:

Sr. Name of the Directors / Remuneration Ratio of Percentage

No. Key Managerial of Directors/ remuneration Increase/

Personnel (KMPs) KMPs for of each Director/ (decrease)

and their Designation F.Y. 2020-21 KMP to the Median  in

(Rs. In Lakhs) Remuneration Remuneration

of Employees

1. Mr. VarunLoyalka

(Managing Director) 10.91 6.82 (28.49%)

2. Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka#

(Chief Executive Officer) 32.94 20.58 (28.49%)

3. Mr. RajkumarLoyalka

(Chief Executive Officer) 26.31 16.44 (12.28%)

4. Mr. Sushil Kumar Kasera

(Chief Financial Officer) 3.59 2.24 (6.74%)

5. Mr. Vikram Kumar Mishra

(Company Secretary) 5.65 3.53 (2.63%)

Note:-

a) #Mr.Surendra Kumar Loyalka resigned from the Board and occupied the position of Chief Executive

Officer of the Company from November 13, 2020.

b) The Non-Executive Directors received only siting fees during the year under report. Hence, the ratio of

remuneration and percentage change is not considered. The details of remuneration of the Non-executive

Directors have been provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

c) Remuneration for the Executive Director(s) and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in the above table is

based on Cost to Company (CTC).

d) The remuneration to the Executive Director(s) is within overall limits approved by the members of the

Company.

e) The percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the year 2020-21 :

(15.76%).



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

31

II. There were 194 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2021.

III. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

All the economic activities during the financial year 2020-21 were adversely impacted due to global

spread of Covid-19 pandemic, by way of temporary closure of its manufacturing and sales operation

Pan India.  As an austerity measures, the annual remuneration pay out to the senior employees and

managerial personnel of the Company was reduced while no increments were made in the annual

salaries of rest of the employees.

IV. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

2. Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,:-

(A) Employees employed throughout the financial year and in receipt of remuneration for the financial

year in aggregate of not less than Rupees One Crore and Two Lakh per annum- Nil

(B) Employees employed for the part of the financial year and in receipt of remuneration at the rate of

not less than Rupees Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand per month- Nil

(C) Employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof and in receipt of remuneration for

the financial year in aggregate in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-time

Director or Manager, and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children more than

two percent of the equity shares of the Company - Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Sd/-

Varun Loyalka

Place: Kolkata Managing Director

Dated: 13thAugust’2021 DIN: 07315452
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SECRETARIAL  AUDIT  REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Zenith Exports Limited

19, R. N. Mukherjee Road

Kolkata - 700 001

West Bengal

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to

good corporate practices by Zenith Exports Limited having its Registered Office at 19, R. N. Mukherjee

Road, Kolkata – 700001, West Bengal (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a

manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and

expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained

by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,

during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31.03.2021 complied with the statutory provisions

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility

is to express an opinion on existence of adequate Board process and compliance management system,

commensurate to the size of the Company, based on these secretarial records as shown to me during the said

audit and also based on the information furnished to me by the officers’ and the agents of the Company during

the said audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of my understanding to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes

and practices, I followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and bases of financial records, books of accounts and

decisions taken by the Board and by various committees of the Company during the period under scrutiny. I

have checked the Board process and compliance management system to understand and to form an opinion as

to whether there is an adequate system of seeking approval of respective committees of the Board, of the

Board, of the members of the Company and of other authorities as per the provisions of various statutes as

mentioned hereinafter.
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Wherever required I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of the laws, rules and

regulations and happening of events, etc.

I have relied upon the accuracy of the documents and information as shared by the Company with me through

appropriate Information Technology tools to assist me in completing the secretarial audit work during lock down

period due to unprecedented situation prevailing in the Country due to Covid-19 virus pandemic and the same is

subject to physical verification by me post normalization of the situation.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the

responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of compliance procedures on

test basis.

My report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness

or accuracy with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

I report that, I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31.03.2021 according to the provisions of (as amended):

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(iii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under;

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made there under to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulation, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination

of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has specifically

complied with the provisions of the following Act:

1. The Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992;
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2. Foreign Trade Policy and

3. RBI Guidelines on Export of Goods & Services

to the extent of its applicability to the Company during the financial year ended 31.03.2021 and my examination

and reporting is based on the documents, records and files as produced and shown to and the information

and explanations as provided to me by the Company and its management and to the best of my judgment

and understanding of the applicability of the different enactments upon the Company. Further, to the best of

my knowledge and understanding there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate

with its size and operation to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations/guidelines/standards were not

applicable to the Company:

(i)     The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)  Regulations, 2018;

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 ;

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,

2018;

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.

I further report that :

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the

provisions of the Act.

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation

at the meeting.

(c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and

recorded as part of the minutes.

(d) There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations

of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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I further report that :

(a) The Company is in the process of maintaining Structured Digital Database pursuant to the SEBI

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2020 vide SEBI Notification dated 17th

July, 2020.

(b) In the light of heightened concern on spread of Covid-19 across the nation during the year under report

and as per the notifications issued by the Central / State Government(s), the Company had temporarily

suspended its operation of certain facilities at its Plants and Offices till such time as has been specified

in such notifications.

Sd/-

(Asit Kumar Labh)

Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata ACS – 32891 / CP No.- 14664

Dated: 13.08.2021 UDIN: A032891C000780594
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDIAN ECONOMY

The Indian economy passed through one of the most volatile periods in living memory in 2020-21, during Covid-

19 pandemic. The year has been an unprecedented year in modern times within the Covid-19 pandemic impacting

human life extensively across the globe. Its Impact on the economic front too was very significant.  Post Covid-

19 outbreak, India was amongst the first few countries that went into a nationwide lockdown from the end of

March, 2020 bringing business activities to standstill for the major part of the April, 2020 and May, 2020. As

economic activity came to a halt, the lockdown had a devastating impact as 1.38 billion Indians were required

to stay indoors - one of the most stringent lockdowns enforced in the world. Consequently, the Indian economy

de-grew 23.9 per cent in the first quarter of 2020-21, the sharpest de-growth experienced by the country since

the index was prepared.

Later, as the economy unlocked in phases, mobility of goods eased supply-side pressures. This is also reflected

in the industrial activity pick-up in second half of financial year 2020-21. Improvement in the availability of

finance from banks, pent-up demand and festivities added to buoyancy in economic activity.

The overall performance of the Company during the year under review, as compared to the previous year, has

been adversely affected due to the unfavorable economic and market conditions prevailing throughout the year

in all the business segments on account of disruptions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic and the lockdown

pursuant to Government’s directives to prevent spread of pandemic. However, we expect no major changes in

the economic activity as the nation is preparing to face the Pandemic with vaccines and preparedness.

THE COMPANY HAS 3 DIVISIONS VIZ.

1. 100% EOU at Nanjangud, Karnataka - Manufacturing High Quality Silk and Velvet Fabrics.

2. Exports Division at Kolkata - Exporting Industrial Leather Hand Gloves, Silk & Cotton Fabrics and

made- ups manufactured on Handloom etc.

3. A yarn division at Sarandi, Ahmedabad - The yarn unit which had suspended its operations since

December, 2015, due to steep competition and unfavorable market situation has started business of trading

of Cotton with effect from January, 2019.

1. EOU UNIT AT NANJANGUD

The Company was manufacturing high quality 100% silk fabric at the unit situated at Nunjangud, Karnataka.

Demands of the Silk & silk blends remained under pressure due to high value of fabrics and less demand

of expensive fabric in European and American Markets. Due to this, company has changed its product

mix and now less expensive qualities are being offered in the market and response is good.

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The Textile Industry is the oldest industry in the country dating back several centuries. It is a major

contributor to the Indian economy in terms of foreign exchange earnings and employment. India ranks

second in the production of textiles and garments worldwide. The textile industry is instrumental in the
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development of Indian economy as it contributes 2% to India’s GDP and 7% of industry output by value.

The Indian textile industry is set for growth, buoyed by both strong domestic consumption as well as export

demand. Favorable demographic, rising per capital income and a shift in customer preference to branded

products is expected to revive the textile industry which has been severely impacted by the Covid-19

pandemic.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

At present the biggest threat is a second wave of pandemic Covid-19. It all depends how fast it can be

controlled to help in boosting confidence and reducing uncertainties. Further abnormal increase in input

cost and non-clarity on rates of export benefits are creating uncertainty among the manufacturers and

exporters.

As expected, some customers in USA and Europe have started shifting textile business from China to

India, Bangladesh, Vietnam, etc. Further brands focus has changed to sustainable product lines which can

satisfy fashion needs also. We are preparing ourselves to take the advantage of both these changing

trends.But at the same time, company has to compete with big mills within India. Company is also developing

new fabric using anti-microbial inherent properties and anti-Covid finishes expanding its product offerings

and capturing new clients. Company is in better position to enter into low priced items as trade relation

between China and America is affected due to increase in import duties by USA. Robust fabric demand

and quality of Indian fabrics and the growth momentum in India, despite rising inflation, may be taken as an

opportunity for Indian exports.

C. OUTLOOK

The financial year 2020-21 witnessed a once in a lifetime situation. Covid-19 plunged all the industries

around the world into unprecedented times. Due to Covid-19, Textile industry and export market has been

badly affected. In the coming year financial year 2021-22, we are foreseeing increase in demand since

few export customers have started shifting their orders from China to India. However, the Global market

outlook is still not clear because of the new strain of Covid-19 world-wide. Vaccination drive has started

and there is hope to cover most of the population by second quarter across the globe.Our Product mix are

more focused on sustainability having innovative finishes and accordingly new fabrics with anti-microbial

properties are being developed and offered to our clients. Also, new finishing techniques (anti Covid

finishes) are also being explored to reinvigorate sales and take advantage of the changing market conditions.

Product mix is being expanded to include outdoor fabrics and contract fabrics. The Company is expecting

better results in future.

2. TRADING DIVISION (LEATHER HAND GLOVES & SILK FABRICS MANUFACTURED

ON HANDLOOM)

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The leather industry has a place of prominence in the Indian economy due to substantial export earnings

employment generation and growth opportunities.The industry is known for its consistency in high export

earnings and it is among the top ten foreign exchange earners for the country. Unfortunately during the
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financial year 2020-21, the Global Economy witnessed an extensive Covid-19 pandemic engulfing all

business and trade activities worldwide to which India was not any exception. The fresh lockdowns in the

beginning of financial year 2021-22 to combat the second wave of Covid-19 Pandemic have once again

threatens to impact normalcy that was returning after the initial wave. To curb the spread of the Covid-19

virus the government has also intensified its drive to vaccinate as many people as possible so that immunity

is boosted and fatalities due to the virus can be minimized and the vaccination drive has picked up momentum

pan-India and the outlook remains positive with the advent of new vaccines reaching the market. The

Company is striving to capture over Global Market and taking various steps to promote company’s products

all over the world and it is being done in line with global trends to enhance scale, global competitiveness

and financial flexibility and also to contribute towards achievement of company’s objective and to increase

revenue, production volume and market shares.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Company is extremely enthusiastic about the opportunities in financial year 2021-22 and beyond.The

company is fully aware of the factors dictating competition and has been investing with the ups and downs

through its various effective measures like cost optimization, competitive pricing, improved production

process and enhanced customer satisfaction. To exist in the competitive market company is consistently

considering all the significant factors, which provide sharp edges that enable company to enhance the

margin. India’s share in global market for industrial gloves is very minimal and hence, there exists big

scope for future growth.

In silk fabrics following Covid-19 pandemic, the turnover will increase in financial year 2021-22 as the

demand is expected to grow due to an increasing demand from sports, apparel and home furnishing textile

products.

C. OUTLOOK

The future outlook appears to be better.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has appropriate internal control system for business process across various divisions with

regard to efficiency of operations, financial reporting, compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The company has kept highly skilled technical and administrative people at our mill, due to which the

internal control systems are strictly maintained i.e. increasing productivity and cutting cost at every stage.

Under the supervision of highly experienced technical people, we are able to produce highest quality of

products for export market. Regular internal audits and checks ensure that responsibility is executed

effectively. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness

of internal control systems and suggests improvements for strengthening them.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATION

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 5070.60

Lakhs as compared to the turnover of Rs. 8286.58 Lakhs recorded during the previous financial year

ended March 31, 2020. Revenue from operations for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 has decreased
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by 39% over the corresponding period last year and there has been a major decline in the turnover of the

Company due to Covid-19 pandemic across the globe. During the year under review The Company recorded

net loss of Rs. 129.72 Lakhs.

SEGMENTWISE PERFORMANCE

(In Lakhs)

2020-21 2019-20

TRADING DIVISION

Sales 4419.10 6306.22

Net Profit 211.36 137.00

WEAVING DIVISION

Sales 651.49 1015.03

Net Profit/(loss) (278.55) (268.65)

SPINNING DIVISION

Sales 0.00 964.45

Net Profit/(loss) (62.56) (113.96)

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

FRONT/ HEALTH, SAFETY MEASURES, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Human resource continues to be one of the biggest assets and plays important role in the success of the

Company. The optimum utilization of the skill, knowledge and attitude they possess are instrumental to the

growth of the Company. Efforts have been made to induct fresh talent inducing more and more

professionalism. The management is paying special attention to various aspects like training, welfare and

safety and thereby further strengthening the human resources.

Further, to prevent the spread of pandemic Covid-19, the Company has taken all precautionary measures

required, such as social distancing, use of masks and sanitizers etc., at all its factory units and office

spaces. Your Company is in full compliance of all Government directives issued in this behalf. The Company

has always considered safety as one of its key focus areas and strives to make continuous improvement

on this front.

The Company hadvery harmonious relationship with the employees/workersthroughout the year.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certain Statements which have been made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing

the estimates, expectations or predictions, may be read as ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning

of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results may differ materially from those expressed or

implied. The important factors that would make a difference to the Company’s operations include demand-

supply conditions, raw material prices, changes in Government Policies, Governing Laws, Tax regimes,

global economic developments and other factors such as litigation and labour negotiations.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[In terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations’2015 (“Listing Regulations”) as amended from time to time]

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is achieving sustained growth ethically and in the

best interest of all stakeholders. It is not a mere compliance of laws, rules and regulations, but a commitment

to values, best management practices and adherence to the highest ethical principles in all its dealings,

achieve the objectives of the Company, enhance stakeholder value and discharge its social responsibility.

Your Company believes in the philosophy of Corporate Governance that ensures fiscal accountability,

ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers,

vendors, investors and the society at large. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has been

continuously upgrading the standards of Corporate Governance applicable to Indian Companies. Your

Company stringently complies all norms of Corporate Governance as sets out in SEBI Listing Regulations.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a)  Composition & Categories of Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive

directors in accordance with Regulation 17(1) of the Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). As on March 31, 2021, the Company’s Board has 6 (six)

directors comprised as under:

l One Executive Promoter Director

l One Non-Executive Woman Director & Promoter

l Four Non-Executive Independent Directors

b) Number of Board Meetings and dates on which held:

During the financial year 2020-21, 4(four) Board Meetings were held. The said meetings were held on

July 30, 2020, September 04, 2020, November 13, 2020 and February 12, 2021.In view of Covid-19

pandemic all these board meetings were held in video conferencing / other audio-visual mode as allowed

under MCA Circular No.20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/ CIR/P/2020/79 dated

12th May, 2020.The Company vide SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/38 dated March

19, 2020 and MCA Notification dated March 24, 2020 for relaxation for holding of Board and Audit

Committee Meeting held the 1st Board Meeting of the financial year 2020-21 beyond the maximum gap of

120 days. The gap between other board meetings did not exceed 120 days. Minutes of the meetings of all

the Board and Committees are circulated to all the Directors.

c) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held  during

the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), the Board’s Committees
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Chairmanships / Memberships held by them and the number of Directorships held in other public limited

companies as on March 31, 2021 are given herein below:

Name of the Category of the Number of Whether attended Membership/ Directorship

Directors Directors Board meetings last AGM Chairmanship in in Public

attended during held on Board Committee Companies

FY 2020-21 September 29, 2020 including

Chairman  Member this Company

Mr. S.K. Loyalka# Executive

DIN: 00006232 Director 3 Yes — — 2

& Chairman

Mr. Varun Loyalka Executive

DIN: 07315452 Director 4 Yes — — 3

Mrs. Urmila Loyalka Non-Executive

DIN: 00009266 Non-Independent 4 Yes — — 3

Director

Mr. R. K. Sarawgee Non-Executive

(DIN: 00559970)  Independent 4 Yes 2 2 3

Director

Mr. S. Bafna Non-Executive

DIN: 00127681 Independent 4 Yes — 1 1

Director

Mr. K. K. Jain Non-Executive

DIN: 00551662  Independent 4 Yes — 2 1

Director

Mr. S. K. Shaw Non-Executive

DIN: 08507089  Independent 4 Yes — 2 1

Director

Notes:

(i) #Mr. S.K. Loyalka resigned from the Board and ceased to be Director & Chairman of the Company

from November13, 2020.

(ii) Directorship excludes Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and companies registered

under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

(iii)  For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship and membership

of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered as per

Regulation 26(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.
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(iv) None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. Further

none of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees

across all the public companies in which he or she is a Director.

d) As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General

Meetings,particulars of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at this AGM are given in the

Annexure to the Notice of this AGM.

e ) Directorship in other listed entities:

Except in Zenith Exports Limited, none of the Directors on the Board holds directorship in other listed

entities.

f) Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on March 31, 2021 and inter-

se relationship between Directors are given below :

Name of the Category of  the No. of Equity Shares Inter-se Relationship

Directors Directors held with  Percentage with other Directors

Mr. Varun Loyalka Promoter/ 268900 (4.95%) Son of

DIN: 07315452 Executive Director Mrs .Urmila Loyalka

Mrs. Urmila Loyalka Promoter/ 629150 (11.66%) Mother of

DIN: 00009266 Non-Executive, Mr. Varun Loyalka

Non-Independent Director

Mr. S.K. Loyalka# Promoter/ 481496(8.92%) Spouse of

DIN: 00006232 Executive Director Mrs .Urmila Loyalka

& Chairman & Father of Mr. Varun Loyalka

*Except above no other Director holds any Shares in the Company. The Company has not issued any convertible

instruments.

# Mr. S.K. Loyalka resigned from the Board of Directors from 13th November, 2020.

g) Confirmation from Independent Directors:

All Independent Directors have confirmed in their Annual Declaration to the Board that they have complied

with all the criteria of Independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Pursuant to a notification dated October 22, 2019 issued by the MCA, all Independent Directors of the

Company, as confirmed by them, are registered with the Independent Directors’ Databank.

h) The Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in Section 149 of the Act

and Regulation 16(1)(b)  and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations and are independent of the

management.
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i) Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

On the appointment, Independent Directors are familiarized about the Company’s operations and businesses.

During the year under review the Company organized familiarization program for the Independent Directors

in compliance of Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, for awareness about the Company’s operations and businesses, the roles, responsibilities, duties and

rights of the Independent Directors. The details of familiarization program imparted to the Independent

Directors during financial year 2020-21 are put up on the website of the Company and can be accessed at

www.zenithexportslimited.com.

j) Code of Conduct

All Directors and members of the Senior Management have affirmed their compliance with the Code of

Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Executives as on  March 31, 2021 and a declaration to that

effect, signed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is annexed and forms part of this report.

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and Functional Heads of the Company. The said Code of Conduct

of the Company has been uploaded on the website of the Company and is available at

www.zenithexportslimited.com.

k) Skills / Expertise / Competencies of Board of Directors:

In order to effectively discharge its duties, it is necessary that collectively the Board holds the appropriate

balance of skills and experience. In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has identified

core skills / expertise / competencies as required in the context of the business of the Company to function

effectively and those actually available with the Board.These are presented as a matrix below:

Skills/Expertise/Competencies of Varun Urmila R.K. K.K. S S.K.

Board of Directors Loyalka Loyalka Sarawgee Jain Bafna Shaw

Strategic Leadership Y Y Y Y Y Y

Financial Expertise Y - Y Y Y Y

Industry Experience Y Y Y Y Y Y

Governance, risk and compliance Y Y Y Y Y Y

Analytical skills Y Y Y Y Y Y

Expertise on various laws Y - Y Y Y Y

Rich experience of administration,

economics, and finance fields Y Y Y Y Y Y

Note: Y-Yes.
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l) Separate meeting of Independent Directors:

During the financial year 2020-21, Independent Directors met separately on February 12, 2021 without the

presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management in compliance with Regulation

25(3) of the Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors

were present and Mr. K. K. Jain chaired the meeting. At the said meeting, the Independent Directors,

inter-alia, considered the following:

i. Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

ii. Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Board, taking into account the views of executive

directors and non-executive directors;

iii. Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction on the performance of Non-Independent Directors and

the Board as a whole. The Independent Directors were also satisfied with the quality, quantity and timeliness

of flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board.

m) Prevention of Insider Trading Code:

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company had adopted the Code of

Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices (which includes

Policy on Determination of Legitimate Purpose). All the Directors, employees and third parties such as

auditors, consultants, etc. who could have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the

Company are governed by the said Code. The trading window is closed during the time of declaration of

results and on occurrence of any material events as per the code. Mr. Vikram Kumar Mishra, Company

Secretary of the Company, is the Compliance Officer under the Code and is responsible for setting forth

procedures and implementation of the Code for trading in Company’s securities. Code of Corporate

Disclosure Practices is hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at

www.zenithexportslimited.com.

n) Formal letter of appointment to the Independent Directors :

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors on their appointment

explaining their roles, responsibilities, code of conduct, functions and duties. The terms and conditions of

appointment of Independent Directors have been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be

accessed at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

a) Brief description of terms of reference

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in compliance with the requirements of Regulation

18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The role/terms of reference

of the Audit Committee, inter alia, includes:
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l Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to

ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

l Reviewing with the management the quarterly, half-yearly, annual financial statements and auditors’

report thereon before submission to the Board for approval.

l Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue,

the statement of funds utilized and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up

steps in this matter.

l Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence, qualification and performance and effectiveness

of audit process.

l Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remuneration, terms of

appointment of statutory auditors and the fixation of audit fee.

l Laying down the criteria for granting omnibus approval in line with the Company’s policy on related

party transactions.

l Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties.

l Review statement of Significant related party transactions.

l Review all material transactions with related parties to be disclosed every quarter along with the

compliance report on corporate governance.

l Reviewing on a quarterly basis, the details of related party transactions entered into by the Company

pursuant to each omnibus approval given.

l Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

l Reviewing Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

l Review compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,

atleast once in a financial year and verify that the systems for internal controls are adequate and are

operating effectively.

l Reviewing with the management, performance of Statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of

the internal control systems;

l Reviewing the matters required to be mentioned in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be

included in the Board’s Report;

l Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company wherever it is necessary.

l Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

l Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

46

l Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and

background of the candidate.

l Reviewing the Internal Audit Report presented by the internal auditors including the independence,

adequacy and effectiveness of the overall internal audit function;

l Reviewing any internal investigations by the internal auditors into areas of suspected fraud or irregularity

of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

l Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower

including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this

provision.

l Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,

amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

l Carrying out any other function as provided under the Act, Listing Regulations and other applicable

laws.

Further the audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

l management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

l Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by

management;

l Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

l internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

l The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to review

by the audit committee.

l  Statement of deviations:

 (a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted

to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/

prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

b) Composition, Name of Members, Chairman, Meetings and Attendance at the Committee

Meetings

As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee consisted of 4(four) non-executive independent directors.

All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate as defined in Regulation 18(1)(c) of the

Listing Regulations. Mr. R. K. Sarawgee, Chairman of the Audit Committee, has expert knowledge

in in Finance, Accounts, Taxation and Company Law matters.He was present at the last Annual
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General Meeting of the Company held on September 29, 2020. The Company Secretary acts as the

Secretary to the Committee.

During the financial year 2020-21, the Audit Committee met 4(four) times. The said meetings were

held on July30, 2020, September 09, 2020, November 13, 2020 and February 12, 2021.The Company

vide SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/38 dated 19th March 19,2020 and MCA

Notification dated March 24, 2020 for relaxation for holding of Board and Audit Committee Meeting

held the 1st Board Meeting of the financial year 2020-21 beyond the maximum gap of 120 days. The

gap between other board meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings held and attended by the members

during the financial year are given below:

Name Category Position No. of No. of

Meetings held Meetings attended

Mr. R. K. Sarawgee Non-Executive

Independent Director Chairman 4 4

Mr. S. Bafna Non-Executive

Independent Director Member 4 4

Mr. K. K. Jain Non-Executive

Independent Director Member 4 4

Mr. S. K. Shaw Non-Executive

Independent Director Member 4 4

Notes: The meetings were attended through Video Conference and there was no leave of absence.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

a) Brief description of terms of reference

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is duly constituted and functions in

accordance with Regulation 19 read with Schedule-II, Part-D of the Listing Regulations and Section 178

of the Companies Act, 2013. The role/terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

include the following:

l Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their

appointment and / or removal.

l Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director,

and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and other employees.
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l Formulation of the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of

directors.

l Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of

the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

l Identify Independent Directors to be inducted into the Board from time to time and take steps to

refresh the composition of the Board from time to time.

l Recommending to the Board, the remuneration of Managing and Whole-time Directors, including

their annual increment and commission after reviewing their performance.

l Recommending to the Board, remuneration, payable to senior management.

l Review information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of Board

of Directors, including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

l Devising a policy on board diversity of Board of Directors.

l Perform such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time.

c) Composition, Name of Members, Chairman, Meetings and Attendance at the Committee

Meetings

As on March 31, 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisted of 3 (three) non-executive

independent directors. Mr. K.K Jain, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. He was

present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 29, 2020. The Company

Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

During the financial year 2020-21, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company met 2

(two) times. The said meetings were held on September 04, 2020 and November 13,2020.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings held and

attended by the members during the financial year are given below:

Name Category Position No. of No. of

Meetings held Meetings attended

Mr. K. K. Jain Non-Executive Chairman 2 2

Independent Director

Mr. R. K. Sarawgee Non-Executive Member 2 2

Independent Director

Mr. S. Bafna Non-Executive Member 2 2

 Independent Director

      Notes: The meetings were attended through Video Conference and there was no leave of absence.
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d) Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing

Regulations, the annual performance evaluation was carried out for financial year 2020-21 by the Board

of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its various

committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholders’ Relationship

Committee as per the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as specified in

Part D of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations read with section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

A structured questionnaire covering various aspects such as adequacy of the composition of the Board

and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance

was prepared which is broadly based on the Guidance note issued by SEBI vide circular no. CMD/CIR/P/

2017/004 dated January 5, 2017.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors including the

Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as participation and contribution by a

director, commitment, including guidance/support provided to the senior management outside of Board/

committee meetings, degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, effectiveness of meetings etc.The

performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board.The Directors

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

a) Nomination and Remuneration Policy

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act’2013 and pursuant to Regulation 19(4) of the SEBI Listing

Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.Salient features of Nomination and Remuneration

Policy of the Company are given in the Report of Board of Directors, forming part of this Annual Report.

The Policy provides for criteria and qualifications for appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel

(KMPs) and Senior Management Personnel (SMPs), remuneration to them, Board diversity etc. The

Nomination & Remuneration Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at

www.zenithexportslimited.com.

b) Pecuniary relationship or transactions of Non-Executive Directors

During the year under review, there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company

and any of its Non-Executive Directors apart from sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Company.

c) Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees only for

attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and its various Committees. The said sitting fees paid to

the Non-executive Directors are fixed by the Board and reviewed from time to time.

Details of the sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending Board/Committee Meetings

held for the year 2020-21are as under:
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Sl No. Name of the Director Sitting Fees (Rs.)

1 Mr. R. K. Sarawgee 63000/-

2 Mr. S. Bafna 57000/-

3 Mr. K. K. Jain 63000/-

4 Mr. S. K. Shaw 55,000/-

Notes:

(i) The sitting fee paid to Non-Executive Directors is for attending the meetings of Board of Directors

and various Committees of Board.

(ii) Each non-executive director was paid sitting fees of Rs. 6000/- for every Board Meetings and

Rs. 5000/- for every Audit Committee Meetings. Further each non-executive director was paid

Rs. 2000/- towards sitting fees for every Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting and

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meeting held during the year. This is to note that the sitting

fees of the Chairman of Audit Committee was Rs. 6000/- and that for Chairman of Nomination and

Remuneration Committee was Rs. 4000/-.

(iii) The Company has not granted any Employee Stock Option to its Non-Executive Directors.

(iv) No Non-Executive Director has been paid in excess of 50% of the total amount paid to all the Non-

Executive Directors of the Company.

d) Remuneration paid to Executive Directors

Payment of remuneration to the Executive Directors of the Company is governed by the terms and conditions

of their appointment as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by

the Board subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the Central Government, wherever applicable.

The remuneration paid to Executive Directors of the Company is in compliance with Provisions stipulated

in Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The remuneration of the Executive Directors includes

fixed and variable salary, performance bonus, contribution to provident fund, superannuation, gratuity,

perquisites and allowances, reimbursement of expenses, etc. as applicable to employees of the Company.

The details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors for the year ended March 31, 2021 are given

below:

(Amount in Rs.)

Name of the Designation Salary and Allowances Other Total

Director/KMP (Fixed Component) Benefits

Mr. S. K. Loyalka# Chairman cum 25,74,194/- 7,19,790/- 32,93,984/-

Managing Director

Mr. Varun Loyalka  Managing Director 10,72,580/- 18,900/- 10,91,480/-
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#Mr. S.K. Loyalka resigned from the Board and occupied the position of Chief Executive Officer of the

Company from November 13, 2020.He received remuneration as Chairman cum Managing Director for

part of the financial year 2020-21.

Notes:

(i) Fixed component includes Basic Salary and Allowances and Other Benefits include Provident Fund,

Medical expenses, Perquisites etc.

(ii) None of the Directors of the Company are subject to any notice period and severance fees.

(iii) The Company has not granted any Employee Stock Option to its Executive Directors.

(iv) The Total Remuneration paid to the Directors during the period is within the threshold as prescribed

under Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations.

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

a) Brief description of terms of reference

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company is duly constituted and act in accordance with

Regulation 20 read with Schedule-II, Part-D of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies

Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee inter-alia includes the

following:

l Resolving the grievances of the shareholders of the company including complaints related to transfer/

transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/

duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

l Approve issue of duplicate share certificates either at meetings or through circular resolution.

l Oversee the performance of the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and recommends

measures for overall improvement of the quality of investor services as and when need arises.

l Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

l Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

l Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices

by the shareholders of the company.

l Carrying out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by

any statutory notification, amendment or modification as may be applicable.
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b) Composition, Name of Members, Chairman, Meetings and Attendance at the Committee

Meetings

As on March 31, 2021, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee consisted of 3(three) non-executive

independent directors. Mr. R.K. Sarawgee, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. He

was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 29, 2020. The Company

Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

During the financial year 2020-21, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Company met on

February 12, 2021.

The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the details of meetings held and attended

by the members during the financial year are given below:

Name Category Position No. of No. of

Meetings held Meetings attended

Mr. R. K. Sarawgee Non-Executive Chairman 1 1

Independent Director

Mr. K. K. Jain Non-Executive Member 1 1

Independent Director

Mr. S. K. Shaw Non-Executive Member 1 1

Independent Director

      Notes: The meeting was attended through Video Conference and there was no leave of absence.

c) Name and designation of Compliance Officer

Mr. Vikram Kumar Mishra, Company Secretary

Address: 19 R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700001

Phone: 033 – 22487071/6936

Email Id: sec@zenithexportsltd.net

d) Shareholders Complaints received and resolved during the year 2020-21

Details of complaints received as reported under Regulation 13(3) of the Listing Regulations and resolved

by the Company during the financial year 2020-21 are given below:

Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil

Number of complaints received during year Nil

Number of complaints resolved during the year Nil

Number of complaints  not resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholder Nil

Number of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil
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e ) Share Transfer System

The Share transfer is processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent M/s. C B Management Services

(P) Limited in accordance with the stipulated guidelines. The authority relating to transfer of shares and

allied work relating to servicing of investors has been delegated by the Board to the Stakeholder’s Relationship

Committee.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Location and time where last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held and whether

any special resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs

The details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company and whether any special resolutions

were passed in the previous three AGMs are given below:

Financial Year Date/ Time Location Details of Special resolution

2019-20 29.09.2020 Through Video Conferencing/ An item of Special Resolution was placed at

11:30 a.m.  Other AudioVisual Means, the Annual General Meeting for Re-

deemed Venue was appointment of Mr. Surendra Kumar Loyalka

19, R.N. Mukherjee Road, (DIN: 00006232)  as the Chairman &

Kolkata - 700001 Managing Director of the Company for a

period of Three consecutive years effective

from 12th February, 2021 and fixation of his

remuneration. However, this resolution could

not be passed due to lack of voting

requirement.

2018-19 24.09.2019 Birla Academy of

11:30 a.m. Art & Culture,

108, Southern Avenue,

Kolkata- 700 029 None

2017-18 25.09.2018

11:30 a.m.

b) Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot:-

No Special Resolution was passed through Postal Ballot during financial year 2020-21. Further, no Special

Resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot as on the date of this Report.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The Company regularly interacts with Shareholders through multiple channels of communication such as

results announcement, annual report, media releases, Company’s website and subject specific

communications.

Summary of major efforts of the Company in this regard is given below:
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a) QuarterlyResults:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are published in leading newspapers

of India and also displayed on Company’s website at www.zenithexportslimited.com.

b) Newspapers wherein results normally published:

The quarterly results are generally published in ‘Business Standard’ in all India editionsof English language

and The ‘ArthikLipi’ in Bengali language within 48 hours of declaration thereof.

c) Website:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are put on the website of the

Companyat www.zenithexportslimited.com after these are submitted to the Stock Exchanges viz Bombay

Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE).

d) News Release and presentation:

The press releases and official news, as applicable, are sent to the stock exchangesand also displayed on

the website of the Company.

e ) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts:

All price sensitive information is promptly intimated to the stock exchanges before releasing to the media,

other stakeholders and uploading on Company’s website.
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9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER’S INFORMATION:

* 39th Annual General Meeting

to be held for the financial

year 2020-21

Day

Date

Time

Venue

Financial Year

* Financial Calendar (Tentative)

(April 01, 2021 to March 31,

2022)

[i]   First Quarter results

[ii]  Second Quarter Results

[iii] Third Quarter Results

[iv] Fourth Quarter and Annual

      Results

[v] Annual General Meeting

* Listing on Stock

Exchanges

* Dividend Payment Date

* Book Closure Date

 

Wednesday

29th September’ 2021

11.30 a.m.

Through Video Conferencing or Other Audio Visual Means

only as per the General Circular dated May 5, 2020 read with

General Circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

April 1 to March 31

On or before August 14, 2021

On or before November 14, 2021

On or before February 14, 2022

On or before May 30, 2022

On or before September 30, 2022

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on the following

Stock Exchanges:

a) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block

Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),

Mumbai – 400 051.

Stock code – ZENITHEXPO

b) BSE Limited(BSE)

P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001

Stock code – 512553

The Company has paid annual listing fees for the financial

year 2021-2022.

The Company have not paid and declared any dividend during

the financial year 2020-21.

Thursday, September 23, 2021  to

Wednesday, September 29, 2021 (both days inclusive).
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*ISIN INE 058B01018

*Market price Data & Stock performance

in comparison to broad-based indices As per Appendix ‘A’

*Registrar and Transfer Agents Members may correspond with the Company’s Registrar and

Transfer Agent, M/s. C B Management Services (P) Limited,

quoting their folio numbers/DP ID and Client ID at the

following addresses:

P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata - 700 019

Tel: 033 4011-6700/2280-6692

 E-mail - rta@cbmsl.com,Website - www.cbmsl.com

*Share Transfer System The Share transfer is processed by the Company’s Registrar

& Share Transfer Agent M/s. C B Management Services (P)

Limited in accordance with the stipulated guidelines. The

authority relating to transfer of shares and allied work relating

to servicing of investors has been delegated by the Board to

the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee.

Share transfers are registered and returned within a period of

15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear in

all respects.

*Distribution of Shareholding & As per Appendix ‘B’ & ‘C’

Shareholding pattern

*Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity As on March 31, 2021, 99.42% of the equity shares were in

electronic form. Trading in equity shares of the Company is

permitted only in dematerialized form. The Company’s equity

shares are actively traded on BSE and NSE.Further, during

the financial year, the Securities and Exchange Board of India

(“SEBI”) and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has

mandated that existing members of the Company who hold

securities in physical form and intend to transfer their

securities after April 1, 2019, can do so only in dematerialised

form.

5285038 (97.94%) equity Shares have been dematerialised

with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)

79597(1.48%) equity Shares have been dematerialised with

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CSDL).

31615 (0.58%) equity Shares arein physical form.
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*  Plant Locations a)  Zenith Textile (a unit of Zenith Exports Ltd.)

     Nanjangud, Dist. - Mysore, Karnataka - 571 302

b)  Zenith Exports Limited

     106, B. T. Road, Kolkata- 700 108.

c)  Zenith Exports Limited

      515 Anandapur, P-71, Phase-II, Kasba Industrial Estate

      Kolkata - 700107

d)  Zenith Exports Limited

      515 Anandapur, P-29, Phase-II, Kasba Industrial Estate

      Kolkata-700107.

e)   Zenith Spinners (a unit of Zenith Exports Ltd.)

       Dholka Bagodara State Highway, Village-Sarandi,

       Dholka, Ahmedabad - 387810

   *  Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / The Company does not have any outstanding ADRs/GDRs/

    Warrants / any other convertible Warrants or any convertible instruments.

     instruments

* Address for correspondence Mr. Vikram Kumar Mishra,

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Zenith Exports Limited

19, R. N. Mukherjee Road,

1st Floor, Kolkata - 700 001

Tel : 033 2248-7071/6936

E-mail : sec@zenithexportsltd.net

* Credit Rating The Company has obtained the following credit rating from

ICRA:

Instrument details                             Rating

Long-term Fund based: [ICRA] B+(Stable)

Short-term Fund based: [ICRA] A4
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Appendix – ‘A’

The Stock market price data with number of shares traded during each month in the last Financial Year 2020-

2021on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE):

Month BSE NSE

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) No. of Shares High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) No. of Shares

Traded Traded

April 2020 39.80 33.20 571 37.90 31.10 12649

May 2020 50.10 35.50 10540 46.55 32.65 19422

June 2020 39.10 33.60 1218 38.75 34.30 33522

July 2020 37.95 34.20 1332 38.90 34.05 23401

August 2020 46.10 36.40 2757 46.65 33.30 29766

September 2020 44.80 36.50 1787 46.50 37.25 14261

October 2020 46.00 39.95 328 45.80 39.65 9813

November 2020 45.20 39.30 1236 46.70 40.05 20253

December 2020 99.60 44.00 83551 99.75 41.30 214614

January 2021 83.90 69.55 13041 85.35 68.10 53086

February 2021 84.55 61.60 40827 85.60 62.50 80192

March 2021 74.80 61.70 85264 76.15 64.00 41833

Stock Performance in comparison to broad based indices:

One year performance 31.03.2021 01.04.2020 Change (%)

— Share Prices of Zenith Exports Limited 67.95 36.50 86.16

— S & P BSE Sensex 49509.15 29505.33 67.79

— Share Prices of Zenith Exports Limited 70.00 33.10 111.48

— Nifty 50 14690.70 8584.1 74.13



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

59

Appendix – ‘B’

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2021

Range Shareholders Shares

(No. of Shares) No. % of Total No. % of Total

1 – 500 1826 94.46 124390 2.31

501 – 1000 39 2.02 31030 0.58

1001 – 2000 26 1.35 36892 0.68

2001 – 3000 11 0.57 27718 0.51

3001 – 4000 5 0.26 17864 0.33

4001 – 5000 3 0.16 13123 0.24

5001 – 10000 4 0.21 23881 0.44

10001 – 50000 4 0.21 105205 1.95

50001 – 100000 1 0.05 88687 1.64

100001 & above 14 0.72 4927460 91.41

TOTAL 1993 100.00 5396250 100.00
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Appendix – ‘C’

Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2021

Category No. of Shares Percentage of

held Shareholding

A. Promoter’s holding

     1. Promoters

a)  Indian Promoters 2792556 51.75

b) Foreign Promoters Nil Nil

     2. Persons acting in Concert Nil Nil

     Sub-Total 2792556 51.75

B. Non-Promoter’s holding

     3. Institutional Investors

a) Mutual Funds and UTI Nil Nil

b) Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies Nil Nil

(Central/State Govt. Institutions/Non-Govt. Institutions)

c) Foreign Institutional Investors Nil Nil

     Sub-Total NIL NIL

     4. Others

a) Private Corporate Bodies/Trust 2009005 37.23

b) Indian Public 585871 10.86

c) NRIs/OCBs 8291  0.15

d) Any other (Clearing Member) 527 0.01

e) Trust 0 0.00

     Sub-Total 2603694 48.25

Grand Total 5396250 100.00
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10. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

a) Materially Significant Related Party Transactions:

During the financial year under review, no materially significant transactions or arrangements were entered

into between the Company and its promoters, Directors, Key Managerial personnel or their relatives etc.

that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Details of transactions with the

related parties as specified in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 24) have been reported in the Financial

Statements.

b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by

Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets

during the last three years are as follows:

Financial year Authority Particulars Penalty

2020-21 NIL

2019-20 NIL

2018-19 NIL

c) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy :

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and a Whistleblower Policy in place to enable its Directors, employees

and its stakeholders to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or

violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards

against victimisation of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the

Chairperson of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied

access to the Audit Committee. The policy is available on the website of the Company at

www.zenithexportslimited.com.

d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory

requirements:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements prescribed by SEBI Listing Regulations.The

Company has also complied with below mentioned non-mandatory requirements as stated under Part E of

Schedule II to the Listing Regulations for financial year 2020-21:

i) Shareholders’ Rights: The quarterly and half yearly financial performance are forwarded to the

Stock Exchange(s), published in newspapers and also displayed on the Company’s website.

ii) Modified Opinion in Auditors Report: The Company’s financial statements for the financial year

2020-21 do not contain any modified audit opinion.

iii) Reporting of Internal Auditors: The Internal Auditor of the Company is appointed on the

recommendation of the Audit Committee and is given the opportunity to report directly to the

Committee.
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e ) Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries of the Company:

The Company does not have any subsidiary Company.

f) Policy on Related Party Transactions:

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealings with

such transactions. This policy has also been published on the website of the Company at

www.zenithexportslimited.com

g) Disclosure of Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange risk and Hedging Activities:

The Company operates in various geographies and is exposed to foreign exchange risk on its various

currency exposures. Volatility in currency exchange movements in GBP, USD, and EURO can have an

impact on the Company’s operations. Based on continuous monitoring and market intelligence the sales

and procurement team take appropriate strategy to deal with the market volatility.

h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A):

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as

specified under Regulation 32 (7A) during the financial year 2020-21.

i) Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary:

A certificate from Mr. Asit Kumar Labh (ACS: 32891, COP No. 14664), Practicing Company Secretary

conûrming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by SEBI or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or

any such statutory authority is annexed to this Report.

j) Non Acceptance of the Recommendation of any Committee of the Board:

There was no such instance during the financial year 2020-21 when the board had not accepted any

recommendation of any Committee of the Board.

k) Accounting treatment  in preparation of Financial Statements:

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards

(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder. The Significant

Accounting Policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the notes to the financial statements.

l) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition

and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has a zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy

on Prevention and Prohibition of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and has also put in place a redressal

mechanism for resolving complaints received with respect to sexual harassment and discriminatory

employment practices for all genders. This Anti-Sexual Harassment policy of the Company is in line with

the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)

Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy.
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Summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the financial year is as under:

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil

No. of complaints received during the year Nil

No. of complaints disposed off during the year Nil

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil

m) The Disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to

27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 are as under:

Regulations Particulars of Regulations Compliance status

(Yes/No/NA)

17 Board of Directors Yes

18 Audit Committee Yes

19 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes

20 Stakeholders Relationship Committee Yes

21 Risk Management Committee N.A.

22 Vigil mechanism Yes

23 Related Party Transactions Yes

24 Corporate Governance requirements with respect to

subsidiary of listed entity N.A.

25 Obligations with respect to Independent Directors Yes

26 Obligation with respect to Directors and senior management Yes

27 Other Corporate Governance requirements Yes

46(2)(b) to

(i) and (t) Website Yes

n) Fees paid to the Statutory Auditors

The total fees paid by the Company to the statutory auditor including fees paid to branch auditors  during

the financial year 2020-21 is summarized hereunder:

Payment to Statutory Auditors  (Amount)

Statutory Audit 1,97,500/-

Other Services including reimbursement of expenses 1,30,500/-

Total 3,28,000/-

* Details of fees paid to auditors are given in Note No. 39 to the financial statements.
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o) Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account:

The Company does not have any securities in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.

p) Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of

Schedule V of the Listing Regulations:

The Company has duly complied with the requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses

(b) to (i) and (t) of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.

11. CEO and CFO Certification

As required by Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Chief

Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) of the Company has furnished to the

Board, the requisite compliance certificate for the financial year 2020-21 which is enclosed to this report.

12. Certificate for Compliance with Corporate Governance

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the statutory auditors M/s. V. Goyal & Associates, Chartered

Accountants, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Part-D of

Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations and the same is annexed to this Annual Report.

13.  Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations’2015,

the Company’s Board of Directors appointed Mr. Asit Kumar Labh (ACS: 32891, COP No. 14664),

Practising Company Secretary, as Secretarial Auditor to conduct secretarial audit of its records and

documents for the financial year 2020-21.

Declaration by the Chief Executive Officer(CEO) on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To

The Members of Zenith Exports Limited,

I, Rajkumar Loyalka, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company hereby declare that all the members of

Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct, as

applicable to them, in respect of the financial year 2020-21.

For Zenith Exports Limited

Sd/-

Rajkumar Loyalka

Place: Kolkata (Chief Executive Officer)

Date: 13.08.2021 PAN: ABBPL5795R
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

(Pursuant to regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021

To

The Board of Directors

Zenith Exports Limited

19, R.N. Mukherjee Road

Kolkata - 700 001

We, Rajkumar Loyalka, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Sushil Kumar Kasera, Chief Financial Officer

(CFO) certify to the Board of Directors of Zenith Exports Limited (the “Company”) that:

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain

any statements that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the

year which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of Conduct.

c) We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and

we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial

reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose

to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i) that there are no significant changes in internal control during the year;

(ii) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year other than those which

have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements;

(iii) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we became aware or the involvement

therein, of any member of management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s

internal control system over financial reporting.

For Zenith Exports Limited For Zenith Exports Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Rajkumar Loyalka Sushil Kumar Kasera

Place: Kolkata      (Chief Executive Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Date: 13.08.2021 PAN: ABBPL5795R PAN: AFNPK5320D
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Zenith Exports Limited

19, R. N. Mukherjee Road

Kolkata - 700 001

West Bengal

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Zenith

Exports Limited having CIN:L24294WB1981PLC033902 and having registered office at 19, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata

– 700001, West Bengal (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of

issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the

Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the

Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as

Directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other

Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1. Urmila Loyalka 00009266 13.02.2015

2. Surendra Bafna 00127681 12.11.2018

3. Kamal Koomar Jain 00551662 13.02.2019

4. Rabindra Kumar Sarawgee 00559970 12.11.2018

5. Varun Loyalka 07315452 29.05.2018

6. Sanjay Kumar Shaw 08507089 12.08.2019

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This

Certificate has been issued relying on the documents and information as mentioned herein above and as were made

available to us or as came to our knowledge for verification without taking any cognizance of any legal dispute(s) or sub-

judice matters which may have effect otherwise, if ordered so, by any concerned authority(ies). This certificate is also

neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the

management has conducted the affairs of theCompany.

Sd/-

(Asit Kumar Labh)

Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata ACS - 32891 / CP No. 14664

Date: 13.08.2021 UDIN : A032891C000780649
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS

OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER IV OF THE

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS’2015, AS AMENDED

To

The Members of Zenith Exports Limited

1. We, V. Goyal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Zenith Exports Limited

(“the Company”) have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company,

for the year ended March 31, 2021, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation

46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations’2015, as amended (the “Listing Regulations”).

Management’s Responsibility

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This

responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to

ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company

for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the

Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance

requirements by the Company.

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,

2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or

Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical

requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,

Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other

Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations

provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has



ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

68

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b)

to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended

March 31, 2021.

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the

efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For V. Goyal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 312136E)

Sd/-

Vinod Kumar Goyal

Partner

Place: Kolkata (Membership No.050670)

Date: 13.08.2021 UDIN- 21050670AAAAAR4045
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of M/s. ZENITH EXPORTS LTD.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited accompanying standalone financial statements of Zenith Exports Limited (“the Company”),

which comprise of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the statement of Profit and Loss (Including other

comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by The Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards prescribed

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended,

(“IND AS’’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company

as at March 31, 2021, loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year

ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independent requirement that are relevant to our

audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made there under, and

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code

of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion on standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to the Note 45 to the financial results, which describes the management’s assessment

of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the Company. The

management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial results as it does not impact the current

financial year, however, in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as complete lock-down, travel

restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the

subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in

respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of

the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises of the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Boards report

including Annexure to Boards Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholders information, but does not include

the standalone financial statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is to read the other information

and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial

statement or other information obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appear to be materially

misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the Standalone Financial

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity

and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
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operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the

Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit

conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

standalone Ind As financial statements.

We also:

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism through- out the audit.

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related

disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/information of Units of Zenith Textiles, Mysore & Zenith Spinners-

Ahmadabad  included in the financial statements of the company whose financial statements/financial information

reflects total assets Rs.27,93,38,669/-as at 31st March 2021 and total revenue of Rs.7,03,03,666/-for the year

ended on that date, as considered in the Ind As. Financial statements/information of these units have been

audited by the unit auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the

amounts and disclosures included in respect of units, is based solely on the report of such unit auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) CARO,2016, issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the

Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books.

c) The reports on the accounts of the units of the Company audited under Section 143(8) of the Act by unit

auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the statement

of change in equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the

books of account.
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e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16) of the Act,

in our opinion and as per the information and explanations provides to us, the Company has paid/ provided

for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by provision of section

197 read with schedule V to the Act.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according

to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial  position.

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for

material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including  derivative contracts.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required  to be transferred to the Investor Education  and

Protection Fund by the Company.

For and on behalf of

V.Goyal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 312136E

Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Goyal)

Partner

Membership Number: 050670

Kolkata, 30th day of June,2021

UDIN: 21050670AAAAAP8181
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“ANNEXURE  A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph (1) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our

report of even date to the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March

31st, 2021:

i) In Respect of its Property, Plant & Equipments:

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of property, plant & equipments;

(b) These property, plant & equipments have been physically verified by the management at reasonable

intervals in accordance with regular programme of verification. According to the information and

explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

ii) In Respect of its inventory:

According to the information and explanations given to us, Physical verification of inventory has been

conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed on

physical verification during the year.

iii) According to information and explanations given to us , the company has not granted loans, secured or

unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

iv) According to information and explanations given to us , the Company has complied with the provisions of

section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

v) According to information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any deposits during

the year.

vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act’2013.

vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,

employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, GST, duty of customs, duty of excise,

value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess

and any other statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2021 for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable.
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined

by us, there are no amount of disputed  dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,

Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2021.

viii) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank,

Government or dues to debenture holders.

ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) and term loans during the year.

x) According to the information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed or reported any fraud by

the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees during the year.

xi) The managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated

by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

xii) This clause of the CARO, 2016 is not applicable to the Company as the company is not a Nidhi Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in

compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been

disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under

review.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into any non- cash

transactions with directors or persons connected with him and the provisions of section 192 of Companies

Act, 2013 have been complied with.

xvi) This clause of the CARO,2016 is not applicable to the Company as the company is not required to be

registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For V.Goyal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 312136E

Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Goyal)

Partner

Membership Number: 050670

Kolkata, 30th day of June,2021

UDIN: 21050670AAAAAP8181
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE IND AS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED (‘the

Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may

occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at

March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V.Goyal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 312136E

Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Goyal)

Partner

Membership Number: 050670

Kolkata, 30th day of June,2021

UDIN: 21050670AAAAAP8181
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Note As at As at

ASSETS 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

  (1) Non-current Assets      

  Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1267.76 1460.76

  Biological Assets other than bearer plants 3 30.07 27.61

  Financial Assets:      

  (i) Loans 4                               -                             -

  (ii) Investments 5 17.00                             -

  (iii) Other Financial Assets 6 286.69 289.69

  Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 534.00 503.45

  Other Non-Current Assets 8 147.96 268.67

  2283.48 2550.18

  (2) Current Assets

  Inventories 9 2810.81 2730.03

  Financial Assets      

  (i) Trade Receivables 10 943.59 1307.78

  (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 619.96 402.07

  (iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 12 2261.26 2190.11

  (iv) Other Financial Assets 13 85.99 78.90

  Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 13.46 16.17

  Other Current Assets 15 568.25 647.87

  7303.32 7372.93

TOTAL ASSETS:-   9586.80 9923.11

  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

  EQUITY   

  Equity share capital 16 539.63 539.63

  Other equity 17 7178.17 7329.44

    7717.80 7869.07

  LIABILITIES

   (1) Non-current Liabilities

  Provisions 18 (A) 158.28 219.59

  Other Non-Current Liabilities 19 11.78 51.79

    170.06 271.38

  (2) Current Liabilities

  Financial Liabilities      

  (i) Borrowings 20 779.11 826.99

  (ii) Trade Payable 21 667.72 609.79

  (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 117.05 121.41

  Other Current Liabilities 23 107.82 136.56

  Provisions 18 (B) 27.24 87.91

  1698.94 1782.66

  TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:-   9586.80 9923.11

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1    

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-48 

As per our report of even date annexed FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
For V.Goyal & Associates ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Chartered Accountants Managing Director : V.Loyalka (DIN: 07315452)
Firm Regn. No.- 312136E Director : U.Loyalka (DIN: 00009266)
(Vinod Kumar Goyal) Director : R.K.Sarawgee (DIN: 00559970)
Partner Director : K.K.Jain (DIN: 00551662)
M.NO. 050670 Director : S.Bafna (DIN: 00127681)

Company Secretary: Director : S.K.Shaw (DIN: 08507089)
[V.K.Mishra (ACS: 36568)]

Place :Kolkata Chief Financial Officer:
Date : 30th June, 2021 [S.K.Kasera(PAN: AFNPK5320D)]

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Statement of Profit & Loss Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Note Year ended Year ended

INCOME 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Revenue from Operations 24 5070.60 8286.57

Other Income 25 396.32 563.47

Total Revenue 5466.92 8850.04

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 26 2810.78 3780.65

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 277.45 426.60

Changes in inventories of finished goods & work-in-progress 27 (207.13) 1221.96

Employee benefits expense 28 553.28 845.84

Finance costs 29 103.98 100.47

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2 164.22 169.02

Other expenses 30 1879.96 2478.15

Total expenses 5582.54 9022.69

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax from Continuing (115.62) (172.65)

Operations

Exceptional Items

Retrenchment Compensation (44.65)                             -

Profit/(Loss) before tax from Continuing Operation (160.27) (172.65)

Tax Expenses

Current tax                               -                             -

Deferred Tax expenses/(credit) (30.55) (29.59)

Profit/(Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations [A] (129.72) (143.06)

Profit/(Loss) before tax from Discontinuing Operations                               -                             -

Tax expenses of discontinuing operations                               -                             -

Profit/(Loss) for the period from Discontinuing Operations [B]                               -                             -

(I) Profit/(Loss) for the period [A+B] (129.72) (143.06)

(II) Other Comprehensive Income

A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Change in Fair Value of FVOCI Investment in Mutual Fund                               -                             -

(ii) Income-Tax relating to these items                               -                             -

Total Other Comprehensive Income                               -                             -

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  [I+II] (Comprising (129.72) (143.06)

Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

Earnings per share (for continuing operation): 31 (2.40) (2.65)

Basic & Diluted (s)

Earnings per share (for discontinued operation): 31                               -                             -

Basic & Diluted (s)

Earnings per share (for discontinued operation & 31 (2.40) (2.65)

continuing operations):

Basic & Diluted (s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2-48

As per our report of even date annexed FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
For V.Goyal & Associates ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Chartered Accountants Managing Director : V.Loyalka (DIN: 07315452)
Firm Regn. No.- 312136E Director : U.Loyalka (DIN: 00009266)
(Vinod Kumar Goyal) Director : R.K.Sarawgee (DIN: 00559970)
Partner Director : K.K.Jain (DIN: 00551662)
M.NO. 050670 Director : S.Bafna (DIN: 00127681)

Company Secretary: Director : S.K.Shaw (DIN: 08507089)
[V.K.Mishra (ACS: 36568)]

Place :Kolkata Chief Financial Officer:
Date : 30th June, 2021 [S.K.Kasera(PAN: AFNPK5320D)]

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)

2020-2021 2019-2020

A. CASH  FLOW  FROM  OPERATING  ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (160.27) (172.65)

Adjustment for :

Depreciation 164.22 169.02

Interest Income (213.91) (181.60)

Dividend Income                     - (0.49)

Interest Expenses 103.98 100.47

Provision of Loss on Forward Contracts W/Back (56.51) 56.51

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 29.94 (47.23)

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investments (Net)                     - (15.49)

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital changes (132.55) (91.46)

Adjustments for (Increase)/decrease in:

Trade Receivable 364.20 60.00

Other Receivable 216.33 342.10

Inventories (80.78) 1665.77

Trade Payable, Other Liabilities and Provisions (80.66) (256.52)

Cash generated from operations 286.54 1719.89

Income Tax Paid (34.85) (29.47)

NET  CASH  INFLOW  FROM  OPERATING  ACTIVITIES (A) 251.69 1690.42

B. CASH   FLOW  FROM  INVESTING  ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (11.09) (125.57)

Purchase of Biological Assets (2.47) (2.87)

Sales of  Property, Plant & Equipment 9.93 102.28

Sales of Investments                     - 231.98

Movement of Fixed Deposits with Banks (68.15) (1398.98)

Purchase of Investments (17.00) (16.49)

Interest Received 206.83 179.45

Dividend Received                     - 0.49

NET  CASH  OUTFLOW  FROM  INVESTING  ACTIVITIES  (B) 118.05 (1029.71)
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Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)

2020-2021 2019-2020

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Borrowings/(Repayments) of Short Term Borrowings (47.87) (474.84)

Interest Paid (103.98) (100.47)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (151.85) (575.31)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS[A+B+C] 217.89 85.40

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 402.07 316.67

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 619.96 402.07

                        NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) 217.89 85.40

Note :-

2020-2021 2019-2020

1.  Cash & Cash Equivalents included in Cash Flow Statement

     comprises of the followings (Refer Note No.11)

     Balances with Banks

     In Current Accounts 222.94 116.20

     In E.E.F.C Accounts - Canara Bank ($)                            - 0.14

     Fixed Deposit with maturity of less than three months 388.74 277.73

     Cash-in-hand 8.28 619.96 8.00 402.07

619.96 402.07

2.  Figures in the brackets represent cash outflows.

3.  Previous year’s figures have been re-arranged and re-cast wherever necessary.

4.  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method’ as set out in IND AS 7 on Statement

     of Cash Flows.

5.  The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. This is the Cash Flow

     Statement referred to in our report of even date.

As per our report of even date annexed FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
For V.Goyal & Associates ZENITH EXPORTS LIMITED

Chartered Accountants Managing Director : V.Loyalka (DIN: 07315452)
Firm Regn. No.- 312136E Director : U.Loyalka (DIN: 00009266)
(Vinod Kumar Goyal) Director : R.K.Sarawgee (DIN: 00559970)
Partner Director : K.K.Jain (DIN: 00551662)
M.NO. 050670 Director : S.Bafna (DIN: 00127681)

Company Secretary: Director : S.K.Shaw (DIN: 08507089)
[V.K.Mishra (ACS: 36568)]

Place :Kolkata Chief Financial Officer:
Date : 30th June, 2021 [S.K.Kasera(PAN: AFNPK5320D)]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Zenith Exports Limited is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company is

engaged in the business of Leather Goods & Textile Fabrics.

The Company has a weaving unit namely ‘Zenith Textiles’ located at Nanjangud, Mysore. Another unit namely

‘Zenith Spinners’ located at village- Dholka, Ahmadabad.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

1.1   Basis of Preparation

1.1.1 Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

1.1.2 Classification of current and non-current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind AS 1 - Presentation of financial Statements and

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the

acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has

ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets

and liabilities.

1.1.3 Historical Cost Convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles in India under the historical cost convention, except for the following:

i) certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value;

ii) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

iii) biological assets are measured at cost incurred for their plantation.

1.2 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is

available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate
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resources and assessing performance. The Group’s chief operating decision maker is the Managing Director

& CEO of the Holding Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment

liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the

segment. Inter segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined

based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as

a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated

revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities”.

1.3 Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional currency (i.e.

the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) using year end exchange

rates as per IND AS 21.

Foreign Currency loans for financing Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at the close of financial

year are revalorized at appropriate bank exchange at the close of the year. The gain/loss for decrease/

increase in rupee liability due to fluctuations in rates of exchange is adjusted to carrying amount of Property,

Plant and Equipment acquired out of said loans. Income and Expenditure for the year are recorded as per

prevailing bank rate on the date of transaction/negotiation.

As per usual practice followed by the company, the export sales transaction during the year are accounted

for at Custom Rate and at the end of the year at the prevailing bank rate in respect of outstanding debtors.

Difference between actual realization at custom rate and/or bank rate is adjusted to Exchange Difference

Account in Statement of Profit & Loss Account.

Gain/loss on cancellation of Forward Exchange Contracts are recognized in the Statement of Profit &

Loss Account of the year in which they are cancelled as per IND AS109.

1.4 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as

revenue are inclusive of Export benefits, Incentive and are net of sales return, sales tax/ value added tax/

Goods & Service Tax, trade allowances. The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue

can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and significant

risk and reward incidental to sale of products is transferred to the buyer.

Export Sales are recognised on the basis of date as mentioned in Shipping Bill/Bill of Lading. Value of

export sales is recognised at Custom Rate mentioned in the Shipping Bill.

Income and Expenditure are recognised on accrual basis.Export entitlements are recognised in Statement

of Profit & Loss Account when the right to receive credit as per terms of entitlement in respect of the

exports is established.

Domestic sales are recorded on raising bills net off discounts, returns and applicable taxes.Accounting for

differential Custom Duty on wastage of Imported Raw Silk Yarn determined as per the input/output norms

for EOU is accounted as and when the demand is raised by Customs Authorities. Revenue in respect of job

charges is recognised based on the work performed and invoiced as per terms of specific contracts.
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1.5 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that

the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit or loss over

the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented

within other operating income.

Government grants relating to the acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment are included in

non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

expected lives of the related assets and presented within other operating income.

However there is no such grant for the company in the current year.

1.6 Accounting for Taxes on Income

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income

based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable

to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted

at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred

income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if

it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable

right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realisethe asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to

items recognised in other comprehensive income ordirectly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

1.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on

hand,  other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.
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1.8 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, if any.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are valued as under:

a) Raw Materials : at cost which is arrived at on average cost basis.

b) Packing Materials: at average cost basis

c) Stores, Consumables & Spares: at average cost basis

d) Semi-finished Goods: at raw material cost and value added thereto upto the state of completion

e) Finished Goods: at cost or Net Realisable Value (NRV), whichever is lower

f) Waste: at estimated realizable value

1.10 Biological Assets

Trees planted are measured at cost incurred for plantation.

1.11 Investments and Other Financial Assets

1.11.1 Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or

through statement of profit or loss), and

• those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of cash flows.

1.11.2 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial

assets carried at fair value through statement profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing

the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments into

the following categories:
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collections of

contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely

payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate

method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are

measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is

included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (except subsidiary and associate) at fair

value through statement of profit or loss. However, where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable

choice on initial recognition topresent fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in other

comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to statement

of profit or loss.

1.11.3  Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend,

industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate

basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

1.11.4  Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

l The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

l Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual

obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,

the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained

control of the financial asset.
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1.11.5  Income Recognition

Interest Income

Interest Income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised in statement of profit &loss only when the right to receive payment is established.

1.12 Financial liabilities

1.12.1  Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognize s all the financial liabilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in the case of

a financial liability not at fair value through Statement of Profit & Loss, transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

1.12.2  Subsequent measurement

All the financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for those

mentioned below.

1.12.3  Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit & loss include financial liabilities held for

trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through statement of profit

& loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of

repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by

the Co. that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

For liabilities designated as Fair Value through statement of profit & loss, fair value gains/ losses attributable

to changes in own credit risk are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. These gains/ losses are not

subsequently transferred to Profit & Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain &

loss within other equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

1.13 Property, Plant and Equipments

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at

historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable

to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
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and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for

as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to

statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values

on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, which are also supported

by technical evaluation. Item of Property, Plant & Equipment for which related actual cost do not exceed

Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are

included in statement of profit and loss within other gains/ (losses).

1.14 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised if the Future Economic Benefits attributed to the assets are expected to

flow to the company and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. No intangible assets were acquired

during the year ended 31st March, 2021.

1.15 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, legal or constructive

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and

there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of

management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the

reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase

in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,

the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises

from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a

reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is

remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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1.16 Employee Benefits

1.16.1  Short-term Employee Benefits

These are recognised at the undiscounted amount as expense for the year in which the related service is

rendered.

1.16.2  Post-employment Benefit Plans

(a) Defined Contribution Plans

i. Gratuity Plan

l The Company has Defined Benefit Plan for post-employment benefit in the form of gratuity for

eligible employees which is administered through a group gratuity policy with Life Insurance

Corporation of India (L.I.C). The liability for the above defined benefit plan is provided on the basis

of an actuarial valuation as carried out by L.I.C. The actuarial method used for measuring the liability

is the Project Unit Credit method.

l In case of Unfunded Gratuity, payable to all eligible employees of the Company on death, permanent

disablement and resignation as the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the company’s

scheme, whichever is more beneficial. Benefit would be paid at the time of separation based on the

last drawn basic salary.

ii. Leave Encashment

Eligible employees can carry forward and encash leave upto death, permanent disablement and resignation

subject to maximum accumulation allowed upto 15 days for employees. The leave over and above 15 days

is paid to employees as per the balance as on 31st March every year. Benefit would be paid at the time of

separation based on the last drawn basic salary.

1.16.3 Bonus plans

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognizes a provision

where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

1.16.4  Termination Benefits

During the year 42 employees were retrenched in term of the Industrial Dispute Act, 1947 and paid

retrenchment compensation of Rs.4465446/-is fully charged to Statement of P&L as an extraordinaryitem

in accordance with Ind AS 26.

1.17  Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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1.18  Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at

the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of

the reporting period.

1.19  Earnings per Share

1.19.1  Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit/ loss attributable to owners of the Company

By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

1.19.2  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

shares, and

The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.20  Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the

Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases(net of any

incentives received from the lessor) are charged to statement profit and loss on a straight line basis over

the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general

inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

1.21  Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair

value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped

at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of

the cash flows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that

suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting

period.
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1.22  Derivatives

a) The Company enters into Forward Foreign exchange contracts/Option contracts (derivatives) to

mitigate the risk of change in Foreign Exchange Rate on forecasted transactions. The company

enters into Derivative Financial Contracts where the counterparty is bank. Gain/Losses on ineffective

transactions of derivative contracts are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account as

they arise and reported in accordance with IND AS 21.

b) Accounting for Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts are Marked to Market (M to M) basis and the

net loss after considering the offsetting effects on the underlying contracts, is charged to the statement

of profit & Loss in accordance with IND AS 21 . Net Gains on M to M are ignored. Reporting and

disclosures of such amounts are done in accordance with guidelines issued by ICAI.

1.23  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there

is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be

contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of

default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

1.24  Use of Estimates

The Preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in

India requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affects the reported amount of

assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date, the reported amount of revenue and expenses for the

periods and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date. The estimates and assumptions

used in the financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and

circumstances as of the date of financial statements. Actual results could differ from estimates.

1.25  Borrowing costs

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets (PPE) are capitalised. Other interest

and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

3. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

Biological Assets [Refer Note-1] 30.07 27.61

30.07 27.61

Note:-

1. Biological Assets represent Plantation Expenditure on Eucalyptus trees.

4. NON-CURRENT LOANS

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful Loan

Loan to Body Corporate - 65.56

Less:- Impairment Loss - 65.56

- -

5. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Mutual Fund Investments Designated at FVOCI Face Value As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Unquoted Units Value Units Value

EDELWEISS Arbitrage Fund-RP Growth 10/- 115719.208 17.00  - -

Total Non-Current Investments 17.00 -

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Non-Current Investments 17.00 - -

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

6. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Secured Considered Good

Bank Fixed Deposit with original maturity 286.69 289.69

for more than 12 months (All Fixed Deposits are pledged ag. Overdraft facility)

286.69 289.69

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Difference between Book & Tax Depreciation 93.86 79.21

      Disallowance under Section 43B 46.70 63.17

      Unabsorbed Depreciation 150.62 126.24

      Unabsorbed Business Loss 165.52 108.04

      Short Term Capital Loss 12.80 12.80

      Amortization of VRS under section 35DDA 64.50 83.27

      Provision for Derivative Loss on Mark to Market Basis  - 14.22

      Provision for Doubtful Debts  - 16.50

534.00 503.45

8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deposit with Govt. Authorities 23.08 23.08

Deposit with others 18.80 20.15

Others 106.08 225.44

147.96 268.67

( Rs. in Lakhs)
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

9. INVENTORIES

(At cost or net relisable value whichever is lower)

Raw materials 646.96 738.42

Dyes & Chemicals 6.67 8.31

Semi-Finished Goods 336.70 306.52

Finished Goods (including in transit Rs. 2.08 Lacs  in March’21 1720.49 1543.54

and Rs. Nil in March’20)

Packing Materials 13.94 49.88

Stores & Spares 86.05 83.36

2810.81 2730.03

10. TRADE RECEIVABLE

Secured, Considered Good 557.14 427.52

Unsecured, Considered Good 386.45 880.26

943.59 1307.78

11. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

Balances with Banks

In Current Accounts 222.94 116.20

In E.E.F.C Accounts - Canara Bank ($)  - 0.14

Fixed Deposit with maturity of less than three months 388.74 277.73

(Out of above, Rs. 14.04 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 14.04 Lacs) pledged

with banks ag. Overdraft facility)

Cash-in-hand 8.28 8.00

619.96 402.07

12. OTHER BANK BALANCES

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months 2261.26 2190.11

but less than 12 months (Out of above, Rs. 3.00 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

pledged with banks ag. Overdraft facility)

2261.26 2190.11

13. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Interest Receivable from Banks on Deposit 85.99 78.90

85.99 78.90

14. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision) 13.46 16.17

13.46 16.17

15. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Export Benefit Receivable 141.91 140.74

Stamp Stock 0.01 0.01

Advance to Suppliers 184.90 302.15

Balance with Govt. Authorities 3.42 3.68

Prepaid Expenses 6.97 10.12

Vat Credit Receivable - 10.03

GST Input Receivable 109.91 72.26

Deposit with related party 90.00 90.00

Interest Receivable 0.24 0.32

Income -Tax Refundable 16.07 9.14

Other Advance 14.82 9.42

568.25 647.87

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

1,00,00,000  (1,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1000.00 1000.00

ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

53,96,250 (53,96,250) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 539.63 539.63

(a) Reconciliation of number of Share Outstanding:

Opening Balance 5396250 5396250

Share Issued during the year -                         -

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 5396250 5396250

(b) Equity shareholder holding more than 5% of equity share capital of the company:

Name of the Shareholder As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

% of Holding Number of Shares % of Holding Number of Shares

Urmila Loyalka 11.66 629150 11.66 629150

Bhutnath Vanijya Vyapaar Pvt.Ltd. 10.80 582586 10.80 582586

Surendra Kumar Loyalka (HUF) 10.40 561420 10.40 561420

Omkara Vincom Private Limited 10.22 551549 10.22 551549

Surendra Kumar Loyalka 8.92 481496 8.92 481496

Zenith Credit Ltd. 5.55 299224 5.95 320984

Purotech Sales Pvt.Ltd. 6.60 356000 6.60 356000

A.C.Roy & Co.Pvt.Ltd. 5.64 304490 5.64 304490

(c) Rights Preferences and Restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder of  equity shares

is entitled to one vote per share held.

In the event of liquidation of the company the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the

company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

17. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Capital Security Premium General Cash Retained Total

Reserve Earnings

Balance as at 1st April’ 2020 224.13 277.37 4612.77 25.00 2190.17 7329.44

Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - - (129.72) (129.72)

Addition/(Deletion) - - - - - -

Income tax for earlier year (21.55) (21.55)

Balance as at 31st March’ 2021 224.13 277.37 4612.77 25.00 2038.90 7178.17

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

18. PROVISIONS

(A) Long-Term Provisions

Provision for Employees Benefits 158.28 219.59

158.28 219.59

(B) Short-Term Provisions

Provision for Employees Benefits 27.24 31.40

Others - 56.51

27.24 87.91

19. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance from Customers 11.43 13.19

Others 0.35 38.60

11.78 51.79

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

20. CURRENT BORROWINGS

Secured

Loan repayable on demand from banks

(a) Packing Credit

Canara Bank [Refer Note below] 779.11 826.99

779.11 826.99

Note:-

Working Capital Loans from Canara Bank are secured by hypothecation of Stock & book debts of Main Division, Kolkata & Textile

Division, Mysore and Personal Guarantee of Promoter Directors and further by  second charge on the entire Property, Plant &

Equipment of the Company.

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

21. TRADE PAYABLE

Other Trade Payable 667.72 609.79

667.72 609.79

Note:-

Out of above, Rs. 2.71 Lakhs (Previous Year- Rs. 16.27 Lacs) pertains to micro small and medium enterprises as defined under Micro

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based on the information available with the company. There is no interest

payable to such parties during the year (Previous Year- Rs. Nil)

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

22. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Book Overdraft with Banks [Refer Note below] 76.69 76.16

Salary & Wages Payable 40.36 45.25

117.05 121.41

Note:-

Bank overdraft includes Rs. 54.24 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 23.26 Lacs) overdraft with bank against Pledge of Fixed Deposit

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

23. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance from Customers 81.10 75.64

Government Statutory Dues 11.22 13.63

Others 15.50 47.29

107.82 136.56

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

24. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(A) SALES OF PRODUCTS

Export 4735.36 6628.78

Indigenous 108.98 1167.98

Total (A):- 4844.34 7796.76

(B) SALE OF SERVICES

Job Charges-Indigenous 3.40 2.40

Total (B):- 3.40 2.40

(C) OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

Export Incentives 222.86 487.41

Total (C):- 222.86 487.41

TOTAL(A+B+C):- 5070.60 8286.57

25. OTHER INCOME

Interest Income 213.91 181.60

Dividend Income - 0.49

Exchange Fluctuation (net)  - 300.01

Excess Provision W/Back 57.10 16.57

Provision for Loss on Forward Contract W/Back 56.51 -

Impairment Loss W/Back 65.56                            -

Miscellaneous Receipts 0.12 0.10

Sundry Balance W/Back 3.12                            -

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments - 48.22

Gain on Sale of Investments  - 16.48

396.32 563.47

26. COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

(A) RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening Stock 738.42 1184.98

Add: Purchases 2685.96 3292.20

Less: Closing Stock (646.96) (738.42)

Total:- (A) 2777.42 3738.76

(B) DYES & CHEMICALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock 8.31 8.96

Add: Purchases 31.72 41.24

Less: Closing Stock (6.67) (8.31)

Total:- (B) 33.36 41.89

TOTAL:- (A+B) 2810.78 3780.65

27. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

& WORK-IN-PROGRESS

(A) Inventories (at commencement)

Finished Goods 1543.54 2639.35

Work-in-Progress 306.52 432.67

Total:- 1850.06 3072.02

(B) Inventories (at close)

Finished Goods 1720.49 1543.54

Work-in-Progress 336.70 306.52

Total:- 2057.19 1850.06

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stock (A-B) (207.13) 1221.96

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and Wages 495.67 764.22

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 36.88 59.28

Staff welfare Expenses 20.73 22.34

Total:- 553.28 845.84

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

29. FINANCE COSTS

(A) Interest to Bank

On Working Capital 70.80 63.63

On Bill Discounting 1.61 3.39

Total:- (A) 72.41 67.02

(B) Interest to Others 31.57 33.45

Total:- (A+B) 103.98 100.47

30. OTHER EXPENSES

(A) Manufacturing Expenses

Carriage 9.49 15.20

Designing & Sampling Charges 20.37 42.07

Material Processed 553.59 776.52

Power,Fuel & Water 59.14 103.20

Repairs and Maintenance

      Factory Buildings 15.05 1.50

      Machinery 3.41 3.56

Stores & Spares Consumed 76.73 113.83

Testing Charges 35.57 15.00

Other Manufacturing Expenses 50.04 86.61

Total:- (A) 823.39 1157.49

  (B) Selling & Distribution Expenses

Advertisement 0.69 1.72

Commission and Discount 47.22 54.59

Export Promotion 10.38 21.05

Foreign Travel 1.82 109.16

Freight Forwarding & Insurance Expenses 77.59 100.71

Packing Charges

       Packing Material Consumed 83.79 49.56

       Packing Expenses 0.18 0.06

Participation in Trade Fair 1.53 26.23

Quality Control & Inspection 241.00 199.61

Total:- (B) 464.20 562.69

(C) Administrative Expenses

Adjustment Relating to Prior Year (net) 1.08 37.65

Auditors Remuneration (Refer to Note No.39) 3.28 3.40

Bank Charges 23.88 35.04

ECGC Premium & Certificates 4.99 7.60

Bad Debts 65.56 32.58

Directors Sitting Fees 2.38 1.79

Donation 1.00                            -

Electricity 35.53 37.78

Insurance 14.82 13.69

Legal & Professional Charges 66.91 81.51

Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments 29.94 0.99

Loss on Sale of Investments                            - 0.99

Provision for loss on Forward Contract                            - 56.51

Exchange Fluctuation (net) 6.54

Miscellaneous Expenses 79.82 97.72

Motor Car Upkeep 23.17 28.64

Printing & Stationary 78.85 101.17

Postage,Courier & Telephone 27.41 23.05

Rates,Taxes & Fees 13.03 19.70

GST/VAT Input W/off 0.65 5.12

Rent 17.68 16.46

Repairs & Maintenance

     Building 61.69 104.49

      Others 18.46 27.77

Travelling & Conveyance 15.70 24.32

Total:- (C) 592.37 757.97

Total:-(A+B+C) 1879.96 2478.15

31. Earning Per Share (EPS)

2020-2021 2019-2020

Continuing Discontinuing Continuing Discontinuing

Operation Operation Operation Operation

(a) Total Number of Equity Share Outstanding at the end of the year 5396250 - 5396250 -

(b) Net Profit after tax (Rs. in Lacs) (129.72) - (143.06) -

(c) Nominal value per Equity Shares (Rs.) 1 0 - 1 0 -

(d) Basic/Diluted Earnings per Shares (Rs.) (2.40)  - (2.65) -

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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32.   Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

(a) Forward Exchange Contracts :

Currency 2020-2021 2019-2020

No. of Amount in No. of Amount in

Contracts Foreign Currency Contracts Foreign Currency

EURO 13 725000 13 626753

USD 10 1017183 20 1723259

(b) Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as at the Balance sheet date

Category Currency 2020-2021 2019-2020

Amount in Amount in

Foreign Currency Foreign Currency

Exports EURO 503267 436811

Exports USD 529711 1091016

Exports GBP 36280 38505

Others EURO 21485 38007

Others USD 1107 40092

Others GBP 4438 10421

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

33.   Expenditure in Foreign Currencies

Foreign Travel & Participation in Exhibitions and Trade Fair 5.81 105.92

Commission 29.61 35.49

Design Purchase 5.26 22.27

Others 0.09                                 -

40.77 163.68

34. Earnings in Foreign Currencies

Exports of Goods on F.O.B. Basis 4703.46 6602.84

4703.46 6602.84

35. Value of Imports on CIF Basis

Raw Materials 64.15 185.23

Stores, Spares & Components 2.10 6.19

36. Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

(i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

     in respcet of

a. Income-Tax demand under CIT(Appeal) Kolkata                                 - 5.64

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Contribution to Recognised Provident Fund & Pension Fund 27.44 42.76

Defined Benefits Plans

Gratuity Benefits are as follows

Description  2020-2021  2019-2020

GRATUITY  GRATUITY

 Funded  Unfunded  Funded  Unfunded

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation

a. Present value of the beginning of the year 62.20 170.92 55.90 162.04

b. Current service cost 2.76 6.33 2.52 10.22

c. Interest cost 4.51 9.15 4.19 11.80

d. Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 1.66 (15.71) 3.50 (3.74)

e. Benefits paid (2.75) (43.22) (3.91) (9.40)

f. Present value of the end of the year 68.38 127.47 62.20 170.92

Change in fair value of plan assets

a. Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 58.68  - 53.52 -

b. Expected return on plan assets 4.63 - 4.53 -

c. Actuarial gain/(loss)  -   -  - -

d. Contributions/refunds made by/to the company 7.15 - 4.54 -

e. Benefits paid (2.75) - (3.91)  -

f. Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 67.71 - 58.68 -

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations

a. Fair value of plan assets as at year end 67.71 - 58.68  -

b. Present value of obligation as at the year end (68.38) (127.47) (62.20) (170.92)

c. Amount recognised in the balance sheet (0.67) (127.47) (3.52) (170.92)

Expenses recognised during the year

a. Current service cost 2.76 6.33 2.52 10.22

b. Interest cost 4.51 9.15 4.19 11.80

c. Expected return on plan assets (4.63)   - (4.53)  -

d. Actuarial (gains)/loss 1.66 (15.71) 3.49 (3.74)

e. Expenses recognised during the year 4.30 (0.23) 5.67 18.28

Investment details

a. Others (fund with life Insurance Corporation of India) 67.71  - 58.68 -

Assumptions

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.16% 7.25% 6.13%

b. Rate of escalation in salary 5.00% 5.33% 7.00% 8.00%

Note:-

(a)   The employee’s Gratuity Funded Scheme of Main Division Kolkata managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined

       Benefit Plan.

37. Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

38. Segment Reporting

(i) Business Segments

(1) Segment Revenue

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups 768.02 1203.68

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups 3818.11 5380.74

c. Yarns                                 - 1013.55

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU) 666.88 1070.48

e. Unallocable                                 -                                 -

Income from Operations 5253.01 8668.45

(2) Segment Result before interest & tax

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups 93.90 15.41

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups (36.60) 18.11

c. Yarns (94.01) (30.79)

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU) (193.75) (207.66)

e. Unallocable                                 -                                 -

(230.46) (204.93)

Unallocated Expenses net of unallocated income (39.74) (48.85)

Interest Expenses (103.98) (100.47)

Interest Income 213.91 181.60

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (160.27) (172.65)

Provision for Deferred Tax (30.55) (29.59)

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (129.72) (143.06)

(3) Other Information

Segment Assets

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups 2080.92 1991.60

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups 4711.52 4818.49

c. Yarns 800.39 860.83

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU) 1992.99 2250.40

e. Unallocable 0.98 1.79

Total 9586.80 9923.11

Segment Liabilities

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups 589.70 601.66

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups 362.48 448.41

c. Yarns 1.15 1.63

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU) 911.54 995.96

e. Unallocable 4.14 6.38

Total 1869.01 2054.04

(4) Capital Expenditure

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups                                 -                                 -

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups                                 -                                 -

c. Yarns 2.46 2.87

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU) 0.13                                 -

e. Unallocable 10.95 125.57

Total 13.54 128.44

(5) Depreciation

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups                                 -                                 -

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups                                 -                                 -

c. Yarns 19.49 23.90

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU) 106.23 106.92

e. Unallocable 38.50 38.20

Total 164.22 169.02

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

(6) Non -cash expenses other than depreciation

a. Silk Fabrics & Made-ups                                 - 29.79

b. Industrial Leather H/Gloves & Made-ups                                 - 67.25

c. Yarns                                 -                                 -

d. Weavings Silk Fabrics (100% EOU)                                 -                                 -

e. Unallocable                                 -                                 -

   - 97.04

(ii) Geographical Segments

The Secondary segment reporting is about geographical segment which shows the distribution of the  Company’s sales by

geographical market :

Sales 2020-2021 2019-2020

India 112.38 1170.38

Outside India 4735.36 6628.78

Total:- 4847.74 7799.16

As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

39 Auditors Remuneration [Refer to Note No.30(C)]

As Statutory Audit 1.97 1.95

As Tax Audit 0.75 0.75

For Certification & Other Services 0.46 0.60

For Out of Pocket Expenses 0.10 0.10

3.28 3.40

40 Purchase of Finished Goods

2020-2021 2019-2020

Class of Goods Value Value

Silk/Cotton/Viscose Fabrics 270.69 390.84

Silk Made-ups 6.74 35.55

Yarn 0.02 0.21

Total  :- 277.45 426.60

41 Consumption of Raw Materials and Dyes & Chemicals

Class of Goods 2020-2021 2019-2020

% Value % Value

(A) RAW MATERIALS

Raw Leather 2388.14 3179.43

Clothes 55.63 111.29

Yarn 333.65 448.04

Total of (A) :- 2777.42 3738.76

Imported 3.14 87.34 7.02 262.55

Indigenous 96.86 2690.08 92.98 3476.21

100.00 2777.42 100.00 3738.76

(B) Dyes & Chemicals

Indigenous 100.00 33.36 100.00 41.89

100.00 33.36 100.00 41.89

Total of (A+B) :- 2810.78 3780.65

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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42 Consumption of Stores & Spares and Packing Materials

Class of Goods 2020-2021 2019-2020

% Value % Value

(A) Stores & Spares

Thread 19.73 20.94

Rubb, Cuff, back & Components 43.17 79.85

Spares parts 13.83 13.04

Total of (A) :- 76.73 113.83

Imported 8.88 6.81 6.44 7.33

Indigenous 91.12 69.92 93.56 106.50

100.00 76.73 100.00 113.83

(B) Packing Materials 83.79 49.56

Total of (B) :- 83.79 49.56

43    List of Related Parties

(a)     Key Management Personal (KMP)-as per Companies Act, 2013

(i) Shri Surendra Kr..Loyalka (SKL)- Chairman Cum-Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f. 13/11/2020)

(ii) Shri Surendra Kr..Loyalka (SKL)- Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. 13/11/2020)

(iii) Shri Varun Loyalka (VL) -Managing Director

(iv) Shri R.K.Loyalka (RKL) -Chief Executive Officer

(v) Shri Vikram Kr.Mishra (VKM) - Company Secretary

(vi) Shri Sushil Kumar Kasera (SKK)-Chief Financial Officer

Additional KMPs (Pursuant to Ind AS 24)

(i) Smt.Urmila Loyalka (UL)- Non Executive Director

(ii) Shri Rabindra Kr.Sarawgee (RKS) - Independent & Non Executive Director

(iii) Shri Kamal Kr.Jain (KKJ) - Independent & Non Executive Director

(iv) Shri Surendra Bafna (SB) - Independent & Non Executive Director

(v) Shri Sanjay Kumar Shaw (SKS) - Independent & Non Executive Director (w.e.f. 12/08/2019)

(b)    Relatives/Associates of Key Management Personnel

(i) SKL Exports Ltd.- Father of MD is a director

(iii) Capital Limited- Shri Varun Loyalka is Common Director

(iv) A.C.Roy & Co. Pvt. Ltd- Shri Varun Loyalka is Common Director

(I) Nature of Transactions 2020-2021 2019-2020

SKL Exports Capital A.C.Roy SKL Exports Capital A.C.Roy

Ltd. Limited & Co. Pvt. Ltd. Ltd. Limited & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

Sales

Goods, Materials and Services 77.68  - - 188.18 - -

Purchases/Job work charges

Goods and Materials 171.95 -  - 79.67  - -

Manpower Providing Charges

Manpower Charges  - 5.75 - - 6.51  -

Rent Paid - 13.20 2.52 - 13.20 1.58

Outstanding as at year end

Receivable/(Payable) (136.96) - 90.00 (8.80)  - 90.00

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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(II) Key Management Personnel Compensation

2020-2021 2019-2020

Transaction Outstanding as at year-end Transaction Outstanding as at year-end

Value Receivable / (Payable) Value Receivable / (Payable)

Short Term Employee benefits

SKL 27.63 (1.60) 38.16 (1.90)

VL 10.91 (0.85) 15.22 (1.07)

RKL 26.31 (1.68) 30.00 (1.94)

VKM 5.66 (0.95) 5.72 (0.83)

SKK 3.59 (0.43) 3.84 (0.59)

Other Benefits

SKL 5.31  - 5.31 -

(III) Transactions with Non-Executive Directors

2020-2021 2019-2020

Sitting Fees

SB 0.57 0.37

RKS 0.63 0.52

SMD  - 0.09

KKJ 0.63 0.50

SKS 0.55 0.31

44    Financial instruments and Risk management

44.1 Capital management

Capital management is driven by Company’s policy to maintain a sound capital base to support the continued development

of its business. The Management seeks to maintain a prudent balance between different components of the Company’s

capital. The Management monitors the capital structure and the net financial debt. Net financial debt is defined as current and

non-current financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and shortterm investments. The debt equity ratio highlights the

ability of a business to repay its debts.  Accordingly the management  periodically reviews and sets prudent limit on overall

borrowing limits of the Company.

44.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments at carrying value.

Particulars  As at  As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Financial assets

Non Current Financial Assets

Investments 17.00                            -

Other Financial Assets 286.69 289.69

Current Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 943.59 1307.78

Cash and Cash Equivalents 619.96 402.07

Bank Balances other than  above 2261.26 2190.11

Other Financial Assets 85.99 78.90

Total Financial Assets 4214.49 4268.55

Financial liabilities

Current Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 779.11 826.99

Trade Payable 667.72 609.79

Other Financial Liabilities 117.05 121.41

Total Financial Liabilities 1563.88 1558.19

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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44.3 Financial risk management

The financial risks emanating from the Company’s operating business include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks are

managed by the Company using appropriate financial instruments. The Company has laid down written policies to manage these risks.

44.4 Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices. Market risk comprises of Currency risk, Interest rate risk and other price risk.

44.5 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rate.

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to the foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily

with respect to the USD, EURO and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions. The objective of the

hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company, as risk management policy, hedges foreign currency transactions to mitigate the risk exposure and reviews periodically

to ensure that the results from fluctuating currency exchange rates are appropriately managed.

44.6 Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial obligations as per the

terms of contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial guarantees and derivative

financial instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risks.

Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made after judging credit worthiness of the customers,

advance payment or against letter of credit by banks. The history  of defaults has been minimal and outstanding receivables are

regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the Company is not expecting any material risk on account of  non-

performance by any of the parties.

For derivative and financial instruments, the Company manage its credit risks by dealing with reputable banks and financial institu-

tions.

Credit risk from balances with banks is manages by constant monitoring in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of

surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned  to each counterparty.The limits are set to

minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through  counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The carrying value of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

44.7 Interest rate risk management

The Company does not have interest rate risk exposure at the end of the year.

44.8 Price risk

The Company is not an active investor in equity markets; so it is not exposed to price risk.

44.9 Other Financial Assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits with banks. Investment of surplus funds are made only

with approved counter parties. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial

assets.

44.10 Agricultural Risk

Cultivation of Eucalyptus trees being an agricultural activity, there are certain specific financial risks. These financial risks arise mainly

due to adverse weather conditions, logistic problems and fire hazards.

The Company manages the above financial risks by keeping Sufficient inventory levels of agro chemicals, fertilisers and other inputs

so that timely corrective action can be taken in case of adverse weather conditions.

44.11 Liquidity risk management

The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet financial obligations of the Company as they

become due. The Treasury Risk Management Policy includes an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the manage-

ment of the short-term, medium-term and long term funding and cash management requirements. The Company manages the liquidity

risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and

actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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45. Consequent to the nationwide lock down announced by Government of India due to COVID-19, the company had been adversely

impacted, by way of temporary closure of its manufacturing and sales operation pan India. Subsequently, the Company has

resumed its operations, in strict compliance with the Government regulations, as applicable.

On the basis of assessment done by the Company and based on the internal/external sources of information and application of

reasonable estimates, the Company has concluded that it does not foresee any significant incremental risk to the recoverability

of its Trade Receivable.

Inventories and Other financial Assets or in meeting its financial obligations over the foreseeable future and hence no material

adjustments are required in the standalone financial results.

The impact on our company’s business will depend on future developments that cannot be reliably predicted. It is uncertain how

these conditions will last. The impact of global health pandemic might be different from that estimated as at the approval of these

financial statements and the Company will closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. Management

expects no significant impact on the continuity of operations of the business on a long term basis.

46. Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped/re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classifica-

tion/disclosure.
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